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Corporate Profile
NCINl

Our Company was established in the Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007. Our
Group's history dates back to 2001 when Hunan Yingde was established in the PRC. Our
Company's Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
October 2009. Our Company wholly owns Yingde BVI which is incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands and is an investment holding company of our Group.

Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier in China in terms of total revenue for the year ended

3| December 2013.

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises are
located on or in close proximity to our gas production facilities and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers generally include liquid gas distributors
and other industrial companies who purchase industrial gases from us on a spot market

basis from time to time.

We differentiate our on-site operation and merchant operation as well as the revenue
generated from the respective operations in accordance with the type of customers to
which we sell our gas products. In relation to the on-site operation, we generate revenue
by selling our gas products to those customers with whom we have entered into long-
term gas supply contracts. In relation to the merchant operation, we generally generate
revenue by selling our gas products (which are produced from the remaining available
capacity of our on-site production facilities as well as our dedicated merchant production
facilities) to local distributors on the spot market. We also enter into gas supply contracts
with a selected number of merchant customers who have a stable and regular demand
for our gas products. Pursuant to such contracts, we supply gas products on a regular
basis during the term of the relevant gas supply contracts. The on-site production facilities
referred to in this report relate to those which we construct after having entered into
long-term gas supply contracts with industrial companies. The merchant production
facilities referred to in this report relate to those which we generally operate without

entering into long-term gas supply contracts with customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

Oh behalf of Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (our “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, referred to as our “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2013. | would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders

for your continuous support and concem.

INDUSTRY REVIEW
Due to the prolonged impact of the global recession in 2012, the gas market decelerated
markedly in the first half of 2013, expansion of industrial restructuring and structural

adjustment on metallurgy and heavy chemical field.

The global industrial gas industry is forecast to witness a rise in yearly growth over the long
term, would still exceed the growth rate of industrial production according to research
from Global Industry Analysts. Market growth will mostly be fuelled by industrialization,
industrial upgrading and environmental governance of developing countries. With the rising
demand for energy and changes in energy structure, severe pressure on environmental
governance and more stringent environmental regulations, the more development and
application of energy efficiency technology will have future impact on the gas industry.
Increased investment in research and development to explore new application area will

also drive the industry forward in the future.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our Group is the largest on-site independent gas supplier since 2009. According to SAI
report of 2013, based on turnover, our Group stepped forward and became the largest
independent industrial gas supplier in the PRC. Our Group, with its extensive market
experience and excellent professional teams, has established itself as a reliable gas provider
and was awarded with premium projects. As at the end of 2013, our Group had 57
production facilities in operation with a total installed oxygen capacity of 1,565,900 Nm?/
hr.
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Chairman’s Statement (continueq)
FEHRE@

Although the macroeconomic environment is filled with uncertainties, as the leader of BELBRERERWIETIE  FRIER
industrial gas industry in China, the professional management laid a solid foundation for BORETENEEE  EXLEERAMN
our sustainable development, the development of the Group remains stable in 2013. AREERET TREMNER  KX&EET2013
Apart from iron and steel makers in recent years, we further diversified our customer base FNERABRT MFRETHERE &
to petrol chemical, coal chemical and nonferrous metal. At the moment, the Group has FE-TEREBMANTFHEZAMET - K
54 on-site gas supply facilities in operation with total installed oxygen capacity of 1562900  {t TMABEBEBEE - B Al - A&EH541H
Nm?/hr. For the merchant market, the market demand of oxygen and nitrogen remained FELENRGHRARE  BEREARDTEE

relatively stable while the price of argon decreased due to the continued sluggish 156290018 & 7oK /N - TEREHE -
photovoltaic market. SRNARNTSEKAHRFETE - ARK

RTGRHRER - ERNERBEZ TR -
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Chairman’s Statement continued)

FEHRE@®

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group will put more facilities into operation to further expand our
business coverage in 2014. In addition, the Group will continue to identify more quality

customers and maintain its leading position in the industry by providing the best gas

service to our customers.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our business partners and customers
for their support and trust over the years. Meanwhile, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our staff for their efforts in the past year. We commit to capitalize our success

and we will strive to maximize the return to our shareholders and Directors.

Zhongguo Sun
Chairman and chief executive officer

18 March 2014
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CEO’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis

ITHARBREREEBNRE DM

On behalf of our Company's management team, | am pleased to report our Group's 2013

results to our shareholders as follows:

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The flourishing industrial gas market in recent years is closely related to the rapid
development in its downstream industries such as steel and coal chemical. However, the
steel industry is struggling with overcapacity which has forced steel mills in China to cut
output significantly in order to ease a supply glut. On the other hand, the considerable
development of coal chemical industry was continued in 2013 and will likely continue
to benefit from the support of the policy environment. Therefore, demand for industrial
gases remained stable. According to the SAl report of 2013, the CAGR of China industrial
gas market from 2013 to 2018 is 9.3%, China's gross industrial gas will reach US$12.4
billion by 2018.

On the other hand, driven by the benefit from the strong demand and growth from
emerging market, health care and electronic products, global industrial gas market also
witnessed a decent growth. Thus, such huge market demand brings a vast development
room for China gas industry, and China’s industrial gas industry will continue to maintain a

rapid development trend in the future.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As the global economy continued to be sluggish in 2012, China's economy experienced
two consecutive quarters of slowdown in the first half of 2013. Under a series of steady
growth policy, there was a significant improvement in each key economic indicator in
the third quarter of 2013 with a GDP growth for 2013 at 7.8%. In this steady economic
environment, our Group maintained strong development and signed a total of 14 new on-

site gas supply contracts in 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, our Group had a total of 57 facilities in operation and 31
facilities under development. The total installed capacity amounted to 1,565,900 Nm?/
hrin terms of installed oxygen capacity, representing an increase of 50.2% as compared
with the corresponding period last year. During the year, our Group sold 18,964 million
Nm? of industrial gases, representing a growth of 42.9% as compared with last year. The
total sales volume of oxygen products, nitrogen products and argon products were 9,437
million Nm?, 8,211 million Nm?® and 183 million Nm?, respectively. It is expected that the
total installed capacity will exceed 2,000,000 Nm*hr in 2016 when construction of all

facilities under development will be completed.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

THRARREREEENWR D M

REVIEW OF ON-SITE GAS SUPPLY OPERATION

Our Group is principally engaged in on-site gas supply. After years of continuing
development and with our professional management, we currently maintain a stable and
quality customer base and an established professional reputation in the industrial gas
industry. To ensure reliable and stable gas supply to our customers, we provide on-site
services including design, construction, operation and maintenance for production facilities

at our customers’ premises or in close proximity.

According to the SAI Report of 2013, our Group is the largest independent on-site
industrial gas supplier in the PRC in terms of our market share of 46.8% in 2013, which
was increased from 40.9% in 2012. Our major gas products include oxygen, nitrogen
and argon. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the tumover of our Group's on-site
gas supply business amounted to RMB6,045 million, representing an increase of 38.7%
as compared with the corresponding period last year. On-site gas supply accounted for
approximately 88.0% of the turnover of our Group, mainly contributed by customers from
steel, chemical and nonferrous metals industries. To secure stable stream of income, our
Group has been stringent in customer selection, and will normally enter into long-term
take-or-pay on-site gas supply contracts with a term from 10 to 30 years, which include

terms of minimum gas supply commitment by customers.
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CEOQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
THRIBEREEEFNRR D M@

EXPANSION BY NEW PROJECTS

As at 31 December 2013, our Group signed new long-term on-site gas supply contracts

ZRMERARRE

R2013FNA3IH REBRITNFRERE

as follows: GHIEEHMT
Expected installed
capacity
(Nm*/hr)
Location Industry of customer B RKRE
FEES BRI FRBITE (BEITK/NE)
Anhui 2 Steel S5 16000  (oxygen)(&&)
Anhui Steel 838 60,000 (oxygen)(B&)
Henan AT Nonferrous metal 5 &% /& 50,000 (oxygen) ()
Fujian 1R 3 Nonferrous metal 5 &% /& 40,000 (oxygen) (AR
Liaoning &% Nonferrous metal A &% & 4,500 (oxygen)(B.R.)
Liaoning & % Nonferrous metal B € &8 15,000 (oxygen)(BR.)
Liaoning 2 Steel S 60,000 (oxygen) (&R
Xinjiang #7358 Nonferrous metal B 2% /& 12,000 (oxygen)(AR.)
Hubei 1t Nonferrous metal 5 &% /& 40,000 (oxygen) (AR
Jiangsu L% Nonferrous metal A &% & 20,000 (oxygen) (AR
Jiangsu ST & Steel 8] 20000  (oxygen)(BR)
Shaanxi BRI Chemical {t T 240,000 (oxygen) (LR
Hubei j#3t Chemical {t T 50,000  (hydrogen)(&&.)
Shandong I/ Chemical 1t T 8000  (hydrogen)(ER)

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

BERBEBEERLS



CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THRARREREEENWR D M

REVIEW OF MERCHANT GAS OPERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the manufacturing sector remained in the
doldrums with shrinking demand from downstream. However, due to the Group's
intensive investment in merchant business in the past 2 years, the revenue of our Group's
merchant gas operation amounted to RMB762 million, representing an increase of 27.2%
as compared with last year. In addition, although the Group's on-site business is growing
rapidly, it takes longer time for the merchant business to reach the same growth as on-
site business. The percentage of merchant sales accounting for the turnover of the
Group decreases to | 1.1%. The downtum of the metal processing industry resulted in a
decrease in unit price of oxygen by 13.0% comparing to last year. Affected by the sluggish
photovoltaic market in the PRC, the unit price of argon decreased by 24.2% as compared

with last year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Leveraging on our comprehensive market policy, effective control over cost and
expenditure, development of business, and devotion from our management and staff, our
Group recorded an increase in our production and sales in 2013, resulting in a steady

growth in 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, our tumover increased by RMBI,910 million
to RMB6,866 million from RMB4,956 million in 2012. The increase in turnover is mainly
attributable to the commencement of 16 on-site facilities during the year and the full
ramp-up of facilities that commenced operation in 2012, and benefit from the growth in

merchant volume.

In addition, our Group recorded profit attributable to equity shareholders of our
Company of RMB908 million (2012: RMB770 million). The basic eamings per share of our
Company was RMB0.502 (2012: RMB0.426).

Pursuant to a supplementary contract between Baotou Yingde and Shenhua signed in
May 2013, we have finalized the total investment cost and the adjusted gas price which
increased our turnover by RMB259 million, cost of sales by RMBI36 million and gross
profit by RMB 123 million. The adjustment on the total investment cost is a one-off

adjustment.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued

TURNOVER

THRRARBREREEENWR D M

Our turnover consists of proceeds from the sale of industrial gas products and provision

of service. Our turnover is recognised when our gas products are delivered to a customer

who has accepted such goods upon which of our Company the related risks and

ownership of such goods are transferred. The turnover figures represent the aggregation

of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax. Our turnover increased by
38.5% from RMB4,956 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB6,866

million for the year ended 31 December 201 3.
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386% growth over 5 years
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(BE12A31BLLFE)

The table below sets out turnover generated from our on-site and merchant customers TRV RENBRSEHARSERES
for the years indicated: 0L ONE
Year ended 3| December
BZ1NA3IBLEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T %) AREFT (%)
Turnover WA
On-site 5% 6,044,828 880 4356677 87.9
Merchant T 762,172 1.1 599,256 12.1
Others Hith 58,508 0.9 - -
Total st 6,865,508 100.0 4955933 100.0

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis continued)

THRRBEREEEN®E D@

The table below sets out the weighted average unit price of gases sold to our merchant

customers for the years indicated:

TREIINATRENARFANTETLHEN
IIEFI BRI ER -

Year ended 31 December
BENANALEE
2013 2012
Unit price (RMB/Nm?®)
BRERARE/BELHK)

Oxygen ax 0.80 092
Nitrogen AR 0.70 078
Argon R .50 1.98
Weighted Average Price T B ER 0.92 110

COST OF SALES

Our cost of sales comprises utility expenses, depreciation expenses for property, plant and
equipment related to production, staff costs for our production team and other expenses.
Utility expenses, mainly consisting of electricity expenses and steam expenses, represented
82.8% and 85.0% of our total cost of sales for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, respectively. Depreciation and amortisation expenses relate primarily to property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets we own and are calculated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of these assets. Staff costs mainly relate to salaries,
bonuses, benefits and contributions that we pay to our employees or make for the benefit
of our employees in our production team. Other expenses primarily consist of other

consumables as well as repair and maintenance.

Cost of sales increased by 40.0% from RMB3,383 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to RMB4,735 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, which was mainly
driven by increased tumnover. Cost of sales as a percentage of tumover slightly increased
from 68.3% for the year ended 31 December 2012 to 69.0% for the year ended 3|

December 2013, which remained at the same level as last year.
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THRRARBREREEENWR D M

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

Our gross profit increased by 35.5% from RMBI,573 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to RMB2,131 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. Our gross
profit margin decreased from 31.7% for the year ended 31 December 2012 to 31.0% for

the year ended 31 December 2013, which remained at the same level as last year.

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME
Other revenue and net income mainly includes subsidies and grants from local government

authorities, and income from patent authorisation.

SELLING EXPENSES

Our selling expenses primarily consist of freight charges for distribution and logistics,
travelling expenses and staff costs in connection with hiring and maintaining our sales team
across different regions in the PRC. Selling expenses increased by 24.3% from RMBI 8
million for the year ended 3| December 2012 to RMB225 million for the year ended 31

December 2013, mainly due to increased in our sales volume of merchant gases.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Our administrative expenses primarily consist of staff costs in connection with hiring and
retaining our management and administrative staff at our headquarters and production
plant level, travel and entertainment expenses, external consulting fees and impairment
loss of accounts receivable. Administrative expenses increased RMB108 million from
RMB310 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB418 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS AND OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, our profit from operations increased by 38.6% from
RMBI,102 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMBI,527 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013, while our operating profit margin remained the same at

22.2% as last year.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)

THRRBEREEEN®E D@

FINANCE INCOME
Our finance income mainly consists of interest income from bank deposits, finance income

on receivables under finance lease and exchange gain.

Finance income increased by 310.5% from RMBI9 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to RMB78 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, mainly

contributed from exchange gain as a result of Renminbi appreciation.

FINANCE COSTS
Our finance costs primarily consist of interest payments for our borrowings granted
by banks and other financial institutions as well as finance charges on obligations under

finance lease.

Finance costs increased by 81.9% from RMB210 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to RMB382 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, mainly as a result of

increase in bank borrowing and issuance of senior notes.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Income tax expenses increased by |16.2% from RMBI36 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to RMB294 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, primarily due

to increase in profit before taxation.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to the equity shareholders of our Company
increased by 17.9% from RMB770 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
RMB908 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests increased from RMBI.2 million for the year
ended 3| December 2012 to a profit of RMBI.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2013.
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CEOQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Bl RS R E TR

Year ended 3| December

BZNANBLEEE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade receivables JEHAR K 950,014 623906
Bills receivable ERER 292,339 204,174
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (60,839) (38999)
Deposits and other receivables e R EmEEHE 610,932 530,586
1,792,446 1,319,667

Our trade and other receivables increased from RMBI,320 million as at 31 December
2012 to RMBI,792 million as at 31 December 2013, primarily due to the increase in the
number of our production facilities in operation from 41 as at 31 December 2012 to 57

as at 31 December 201 3.

Turnover of trade receivables increased from 39 days for the year ended 31 December

2012 to 4| days for the year ended 3| December 2013, which was in line with the

BMMERERRE T RKFIER2012F12A
BIAMARKI30BETEE20I3512A3I
ANARRI7NBET  TEARAKERE
EEMNAERER02E 12A3 BH4 B
ME2013F 12431 BRY571E -

FEWER S AESREZ202F 12A31BIEF
BH9OREEEZE0I3ENABILEEER

payment terms for our trade receivables due from on-site and merchant customers. 41X BEKRSHREFPETERFFIEN
BESESE

The following table sets out the turmover of our trade receivables for the years indicated: TREFINFAREE KRR FAERE -

Year ended 3| December
BENA3NALEE
2013 2012

Turnover of trade receivables (days)* FE R 7 B 8 (R &) * 4 39

Note: B

* Calculated on the average of the beginning and ending trade receivables balances for the * IR EEMES @ B EEFEVHEERNE

year, divided by turnover for the year, multiplied by 360 days for a year in respect of the

years indicated.

DE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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BORROWINGS B
Year ended 3| December

BENANALEE

2013 2012
Actual  *As adjusted
B FER
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT ARBTT ARETL
Short-term borrowings SRR 100,000 905,358 905,358
Current portion of long-term borrowings REESREENER I (7 1,094,579 2,357,959 1,297,118
1,194,579 3263317 2,202,476
Non-current portion of long-term borrowings & Hi{& X 1) & B &0 15 5818610 2,864,774 3925615
7,013,189 6,128,091 6,128,091

* As adjusted gives effect to subsequent formal unconditional waivers by the lenders concerned

of the loans that would become payable on demand on actual basis due to the breach of

certain financial covenants as at 3| December 2012. Such loans had been fully repaid in 2013.

o BEERERBREEIRERETHBEROM

RNFENRAIBREADAERBEEND
PEFBERFANEEEREREHE
3l o EEHERDN2013FLHEER -
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CEOQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have historically met our working capital and other capital requirements principally
from equity provided by our shareholders, cash generated from operations, cash at bank
and in hand and through short-term and long-term borrowings from banks and other

financial institutions.

As at 31 December 2013, the total assets of our Group were approximately RMBI16,552
million, representing an increase of RMBI,759 million from 31 December 2012. The cash
at bank and in hand was RMB343 million, representing an decrease of RMB504 million
from 31 December 2012. The current ratio of our Group was 60.7%. The gearing ratio of
our Group that is calculated at total liabilities divided by total assets was 62.4%.

One subsidiary of the Company issued senior notes of aggregate amount of
USD425,000,000 in April 2013 at an interest rate of 8.125% per annum, which will be due
in 2018. Details of the senior notes are set out in note 24(e) to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying value of assets pledged to secure for borrowings

were RMB2,442 million (31 December 2012: RMB2,467 million).

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND WARRANTS

On 24 November 2013, our Company and China Development Bank International
Investment Limited (“CDB International”) entered into an investment agreement whereby
our Company agreed to issue and CDB International agreed to subscribe for (i) the
principal amount of US$25,000,000 8% coupon convertible bonds due 2015; and (ii)
at nil consideration, 18,953,853 warrants exercisable to purchase ordinary Shares of

US$0.000001 each in the capital of our Company.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEREIEBEERRAA
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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The convertible bonds are convertible into Shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$8.80 per Share. If all the convertible bonds are converted at the initial conversion
price, a total of 22,024,148 new Shares will be issued. The initial price at which a share
will be issued upon exercise of a warrant will be HK$10.23. The total price at which CDB
International is entitled to acquire the warrant shares from the Company shall be not
more than US$25,000,000. The net proceeds from the issue of the convertible bonds
received by the Company is US$25,000,000, and upon full exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the warrants, net proceeds of approximately US$25,000,000 will be
raised by the Company, both of which will be used as general working capital of the

Company.

There was no conversion of the convertible bonds or exercise of the warrants as at 31

December 201 3.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditures principally comprise expenditures for the construction of new
production facilities and purchase of property, plant and equipment and other investments.
The annual total capital expenditure for 2013 was RMB2,691 million (2012: RMB3,782
million), principally comprised expenditures for the construction of new production
facilities, purchase of property, plant and equipment and other investments, which were

financed by a combination of our internal cash flows and bank borrowings.

INTERESTS

We have entered into an interest rate swap contract to achieve a targeted mix of fixed
and floating rate debts. In this interest rate swap contract, we principally receive interests
at floating rates based on London Interbank Offered Rate and pay interests at fixed rate.
The interest rate swap is designated as a cash flow hedge to hedge against changes in the

interest rates of our debt portfolio.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

As at 31 December 2013, our Group had no investments in hedging of any speculative
derivatives. In view of the potential Renminbi exchange rate fluctuations, our Group
will consider arranging for proper financial instruments at appropriate time to avoid the

corresponding risks.

ABRER I AREY S LREERES0ET
RBABRD - BRI HBERE L RTRR
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CEQ’s Report and Management Discussion & Analysis (continued)
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities of our Group and our Company are set out in notes

31(c) and 31(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS
Our Company aims to consolidate and further strengthen our position as the leading

domestic independent on-site industrial gas supplier in the PRC.
In order to achieve this, we intend to pursue the following strategies:

. capitalize on the outsourcing trend and consolidate and further strengthen our

leading position in the outsourcing on-site industrial gas market in Ching;

. “Go Deep” and “Go Wide" to develop our business and expand our business

network;

. further enhance and expand the Company's target markets through industry

diversification;

. enhance our competitive strength in providing customized, unique and efficient
solutions to our customers through continuous innovation and research and

development; and

. continue to attract and retain highly skilled professionals.

EMPLOYEE, REMUNERATION POLICY AND INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

Human resources and information technology have been essential to our Group's
success. Our staff is crucial assets of our Company. As such, we review our remuneration
policy and welfare from time to time to ensure it remains competitive. Our Company
has a balanced appraisal system to evaluate the staff's performance. For the long-term
development of all concerned, we provide relevant training to our staff, such as providing
financial supports to our staff for their further education and carrying out relevant
trainings for our management. Our Group have operated a training and research centre
in Hangzhou, where our staff could acquire more knowledge on industry safety and

technology.

As at 31 December 2013, our Group had 3,967 (31 December 2012: 3,698) employees.
The increase in headcount was mainly a result of the commencement of production at 16
new production facilities in 2013 and the recruitment of talents for the development of

our Company.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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We believe that our Company's strong growth and maturity is credited to the expertise
of our high-calibre staff and their full support to our Company’s development strategy.
Our Company values every staff member, and therefore put forward a people-oriented
governance philosophy, endeavouring to provide our staff with an excellent working
environment and a sound promotion system, and to offer newly promoted staff
comprehensive on-the-job training, with a view to fostering a sense of belonging among
staff members and propping up their passion at work so that they may provide clients

with higher quality services.

EXCELLENT MANAGEMENT

Our senior management and senior technicians have extensive experience in the
operation of industrial gas enterprises, as well as industry knowledge and know-how,
thereby leading our Group's businesses to head towards greater success. In addition to
retaining management personnel, we also continue recruiting high-calibre technicians
and improving our operation systems and production technologies, in order to provide

customers with the best gas supply management solutions and other professional services.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors of our Company have proposed a final dividend of RMBO.18 per Share for
the year ended 3| December 2013 (2012: RMBO.15 per Share), subject to approval by

shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Stakeholders

Our Group’s investor relations team is devoted to enable the most effective
communication between our Company, shareholders, the financial community and
other stakeholders. Our Company adheres to the best practices of high transparency
and consistency in the disclosure of information whether the market is favourable to the
industrial gas sector or otherwise. Our investor relations team has earned the recognition
from shareholders, investors and analysts on our Group's integrity in continuing to
communicate our Company's strategies and performance at the earliest date in 2013,
Our Company's investor relations team frequently reported to management and relevant
departments on stakeholders’ comments and opinions so that we could keep improving
our efficiency and performance, with the ultimate goal of generating higher retumns for our
shareholders. Communication between the stakeholders and our Company is a two-way

process. Our Company had made the following efforts in 201 3:
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Providing updates to stakeholders through the following channels:

- announcements and notices published on the website of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, our Company's website, and/or dispatched to our shareholders pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules;

- our Company's financial reports;

- our annual and extraordinary general meetings, attended by top management

representatives and Directors; and

- investors conferences and meetings.

Encouraging feedback from stakeholders through channels such as:

- face-to-face dialogue at our annual and extraordinary general meetings;

- communication with stakeholders via email or telephone. Our Company also
replied email and telephone enquiries from stakeholders directly. If it was a matter

of general interest to stakeholders, we would seek to address it in subsequent

corporate communication to all stakeholders; and

- site visits. Our Company has organized a few site visits for the stakeholders to

inspect our production facilities across China in 201 3.

Our Company collected and reported to the management team regularly about

stakeholders' comments and suggestions on our operations.

We are grateful to all stakeholders who offered us support and provided us with feedback
during 2013. If any stakeholder has questions or comments on the Company's work,

please contact us at ir@yingdegas.com.
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PROSPECTS

With the introduction of various measures following the new leadership of the Chinese
government, the Chinese economy has showed a sign of recovery and is set to record
faster growth in 2014, which will benefit the manufacturing industry. With more facilities
scheduled to be put into operation in the coming year, our Group will further expand
its business presence and share of the outsourcing market. Our Group will endeavour to
secure suitable, good customers in the market in order to maintain its leading position in

the industry while continuing to consolidate its business.

Pursuing the above goals, our Group will strive for outstanding performance in 2014 and

reciprocate our shareholders with admirable retumn.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
SEENEGREEEDRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND CHAIRMAN

Mr. Zhongguo Sun, aged 50, was initially appointed as the chairman, chief executive
officer of our Company and an executive Director on |2 November 2007 and was
subsequently re-elected as a Director on 19 May 2010 and 21 June 2013. Mr. Sun was
one of the founders of our Group and has been a director and the general manager of
our Group since 2001. Mr. Sun is responsible for the overall management and strategy
of our Group. Mr. Sun has more than ten years experience in the industrial gas industry.
Prior to establishing our Group, Mr. Sun was the business manager of applied gas solution
at BOC Group Plc,. Mr. Sun received a Master of Science in Mechanical Engineering from

the University of Pittsburgh in 1989.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhao Xiangti, aged 55, was initially appointed as an executive Director on 12
November 2007 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on 15 June 2012. Mr.
Zhao was one of the founders of our Group and has participated in our management,
business development and expansion since October 2001. Mr. Zhao is responsible for
domestic finance planning and support in the PRC within our Group. Mr. Zhao has years
of experience in the industrial gas industry. Mr. Zhao received a Bachelor of Engineering

from Hebei Science and Technology University in 1982.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, aged 62, was appointed as an executive Director on 20
May 2010 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on 26 May 201 1. He is also the
chief operating officer of our Company. Mr. Strutt was one of the founders of our Group
and has been the deputy general manager responsible for the overall operational aspects
of our Group since establishment. Mr. Strutt has more than 20 years experience in the
industrial gas industry. Prior to establishing our Group, he held various positions at BOC
Group Plc,. Mr. Strutt received a Bachelor of Science with Honors in Materials Science
from the University of Sussex in 1975 and a Master of Business Administration from the
University of Leeds in 2001. Mr. Strutt is a member of the Institute of Materials, Minerals
and Mining, and is a registered member of the United Kingdom Engineering Council —

Chartered Engineer.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zheng Fuya, aged 47, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 12 September 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on
26 May 201 1. Mr. Zheng was a director of Cogo Group, Inc, a company listed on the
NASDAQ and has since | January 2008 served as the chief financial officer of the same
company. Mr. Zheng was previously vice president of travel service at eLong, Inc, one of
the leading online travel service companies in China and listed on the NASDAQ, where
Mr. Zheng was responsible for the overall operation of elLong Inc.'s travel services. Mr.
Zheng has more than ten years experience in the service industry. Mr. Zheng received a
Bachelor of Business Administration majoring in accounting from City University of New

York in 1994,

Dr. Wang Ching, aged 59, was initially appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 4 December 2009 and was subsequently re-elected as a Director on |5 June
2012. Dr. Wang has more than 20 years of working experience in global financial industry
specialising in asset management, direct investment, corporate finance, equity and fixed
income trading/sales with particular focus in the US. and the Greater China region. Dr.
Wang is currently the managing director of Shanghai International Asset Management
(HK) Co. Ltd, a licensed corporation registered with Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission, the executive director of Shanghai Intemational Shanghai Growth Investment
Limited, an investment fund company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 770). He also serves as independent non-executive directors for several companies
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, in which he advises the top management on
business strategies, financial development and internal control. Dr. Wang had served as
the CEO of the Investment & Proprietary Trading Group for Jih Sun Financial Holding Co.,
Ltd. in Taiwan, Chairman of FENB Securities, Inc. in U.S., Managing Director of SinoPac
Securities (Asia) Hong Kong, Managing Director of JS Cresvale International Securities,
Director of Investment Banking of Standard Chartered Bank in Hong Kong, and Associate
Director of Bear Stearns & Co., Inc. in New York. Dr. Wang received his Ph.D. in Finance

from Columbia University in New York.
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Mr. He Yuanping, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
23 December 2013. He has years of experience in senior operation and management,
with rich theoretical knowledge and practical experience in the investment and financing,
business management, industrial operations, finance and other fields. From September
2005 to present, Mr. He has taken senior positions in many companies, including the
director, executive vice president, chief financial officer ("CFO") and board secretary
of Beijing Originwater Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300070), a director of Wuhan Sanzhen Industry Holding Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600168), an independent
non-executive director of Telestone Technology Corporation (a NASDAQ listed
company, NASDAQ: TSTC), and the director and supervisor for more than 30 affiliated
companies of Telestone Technology Corporation. Mr. He currently is vice president of
Western Returned Scholars Association ANZ branch, deputy secretary general of Beijing
Listed Companies Association, and executive director of Beijing Private Technology
Entrepreneurs Association. He was awarded as New Fiscal Year China's Top Ten CFO by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, China's Annual Most Valuable CFO by the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, Excellent Board Secretary of China Listed Company,
and the Second Session Excellent Young Entrepreneurs of Haidian District, Beijing. Mr. He
worked as a vice president and chief investment officer of Beijing Allianz Investment Co.
Ltd. from April 2004 to August 2005, the general manager of Peking University Founder
Group-Fangzhengdongan Rare Earth Ltd. from June 2002 to August 2004, a vice president
and investment director of Peking University Founder Group Investment Company from
July 2000 to June 2002, a staff member and director of Social Development Division
and Intemational Science and Technology Center of State Scientific and Technological
Commission of the PRC (now known as Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC)
from December 1992 to April 1997, and a teacher of Beijing Institute of Technology from
February 1992 to December 1992. Mr. He received a Bachelor's degree in engineering
from Nanjing University of Science and Technology in July 1987, a master's degree in
engineering from Beijing University of Science and Technology in March 1992 and a
master’s degree in financial mathematic from Victoria University of Wellington in New
Zealand in June 2000.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Zhongguo Sun - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Director and Chairman”.

Mr. Zhao Xiangti - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed - “Executive

Directors”.

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt - please refer to his biography under the sub-section headed -

“Executive Directors”.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing, aged 35, joined our Group on | July 2008 and is CFO and joint
company secretary of our Group. Ms. Wong has over ten years of accounting experience
in the industrial sector. Prior to joining our Company, Ms. Wong was the group chief
financial officer of Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holdings Limited, an
investment holding company with subsidiaries engaging in media business in the PRC.
She was previously employed as the financial controller of Avex China Company Limited,
a PRC joint venture company established by Orange Sky Entertainment (International)
Holdings Limited and Avex Group Holdings Inc., which is a company listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was also previously employed as a manager at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Wong holds a Bachelor of Business Administration from
the University of Hong Kong. She received her EMBA from China Europe International
Business School. Ms. Wong became a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2003.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ms. Wong Sze Wing - please refer to her biography under the sub-section headed - “Senior

Management".

Ms. Mok Ming Wai, was appointed as the joint company secretary of the Company on
24 June 2013. Ms. Mok is a director of KCS Hong Kong Limited, she has over 18 years
of professional and in-house experience in the company secretarial field. Ms. Mok is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. She currently acts as the

sole company secretary and joint company secretary of various publicly listed companies.
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Directors’ Report
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited consolidated financial

statements of our Company and of our Group for the year ended 3| December 2013.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Our Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong is at Room 3212-13, 32/F,
Tower Two, Times Square, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong and has its registered office at

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KYI-1111, Cayman lslands.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
Based on the research information in the SAI Report, we were the largest domestic
independent industrial gas supplier in China in terms of total tumnover for the year ended

31 December 2013,

We produce, supply and distribute a variety of industrial gas products to our on-site and
merchant customers from a number of locations in the PRC, with oxygen, nitrogen and
argon being our main gas products. Our on-site customers are those whose premises are
located on or in close proximity to our gas production facilities and to whom we supply
industrial gases directly. Our merchant customers are generally liquid gas distributors who

purchase industrial gases from us on a spot market basis from time to time.

The analysis of our Group's turnover is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
Results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 65.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
Our Directors have proposed a final dividend of RMBO.18 per Share for the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: RMBO.15 per Share).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of our Group is

set out on page |86.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of our Group and our Company during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 29(a) to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Our Company's total distributable reserves as at 31 December 2013 amounted to

RMB2,036 million (2012: RMB2,38 I million).

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in the share capital of our Company during the year ended 31 December

2013 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in our Group's property, plant and equipment are set out in note || to the

consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND CAPITALISATION OF INTERESTS

Details of borrowings of our Group during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements. Details of our Group's capitalised interests expenses
and other borrowing costs during the year are set out in note 5(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Details of the retirement benefit plans of our Group are set out in note 5(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF OUR COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES
During the year under review, neither our Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of our Company's listed securities.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a resolution of the shareholders
on 12 September 2009 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on |2 September 2009.
Unless it is terminated by the Board or our shareholders in general meeting in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years on the date which it becomes unconditional.
After the period, no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to exercise any subsisting
options granted prior to the expiry of this ten year period or otherwise as handled in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. The amount payable by
a participant upon acceptance of a grant of option is RMBI.00. The Board may, at its
absolute discretion, offer any employee, management member or Director, or any of our
subsidiaries and third party service providers the options to subscribe for shares on the
terms set out in the Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to attract and retain skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with
us and to give effect to our customer-focused corporate culture, and to motivate them to
strive for our future development and expansion, by providing them with the opportunity

to acquire equity interests in our Company.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 0% of the issued Shares as at the

date of approval of the Share Options Scheme (ie. a total of 180,923,250 Shares).
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No option may be granted to any one person such that the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of options granted and to be granted to that person
inany 12 month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds |% of our issued share

capital from time to time, unless the approval of our shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable for each Share to be subscribed for under an option upon exercise
shall be determined by the Board and notified to a proposed beneficiary at the time of
offer of the option and shall be not less than the higher of:

(@)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a Business Day;

(b)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for the five Business Days immediately preceding the date of

grant; and
()  the nominal value of the Shares.

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum period(s) for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised. However, at the time of grant of the options, our

Company may specify any such minimum period(s).

As at 31 December 2013, no options have been granted pursuant to the Share Option

Scheme.

SHARE ALLOTMENT SCHEME

On 8 July 2013, our Company adopted the share allotment scheme (the “Share Allotment
Scheme”) pursuant to which 22,600,000 allotted Shares have been successfully subscribed
by the trustee at the issue price of HK$7.03 per allotted Share on |5 October 201 3.
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For subscription of the new Shares issued by our Company, the Board has the discretion
to decide the issue price up to 10% discount to the 30-day average closing price of
the Shares prior to the reference date. The issue price of HK$7.03 per allotted Share
represents a discount of approximately 5% to the average closing price of the Share for

the last 30 trading days prior to 16 September 2013 which is HK$7.40.

The total proceeds used by the trustee to subscribe for the allotted Shares is
HK$158,878,000, which was borrowed from our Company by the trustee pursuant to
the Share Allotment Scheme. The trustee will hold the Shares and the income derived
therefrom and perform its duties of trustee in accordance with the terms of the trust deed
and such other applicable agreements as agreed between our Company and the trustee
from time to time either in its own name or in the name of a nominee or an investment/
asset holding vehicle established solely for the purposes of the Share Allotment Scheme.
The allotted Shares held by the trustee shall be fully vested on the participating employee
on the tenth anniversary date of the reference date provided that the participating

employee remains at all times after the reference date till vesting date an employee.

The participating employees of the Share Allotment Scheme are mid-and-senior-level
management team of our Company selected by the Board at its sole discretion on the
basis of the employee’s contribution to the development and growth of our Group and

such other matters that the Board considers relevant.

The purpose of the Share Allotment Scheme is to recognize the contributions by certain
employees and to give incentives for them to work with commitment towards enhancing
the value of our Company and to attract high caliber personnel for further development

of our Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer,
re-elected/appointed on 21| June 2013)

Mr. Zhao Xiangti (re-elected/appointed on 15 June 2012)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt (re-elected/appointed on 26 May 201 1)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Fuya (re-elected/appointed on 26 May 201 1)

Dr. Wang Ching (re-elected/appointed on 15 June 2012)

Mr. He Yuanping (appointed on 23 December 2013)

Mr. Xu Zhao (resigned on 23 December 2013)

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the articles of association of our Company (“Articles

of Association), Mr. He Yuanping shall retire and being eligible, has offered himself for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt

and Mr. Zheng Fuya shall retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for

re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Brief biographical details of Directors are set out on pages 22 to 24.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with our Company or any member of our
Company which is not determinable by our Company within one year without the

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance in relation to our Group's business to which our Company, any
of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

financial year or at any time during the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was our Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, our Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of our

Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF OUR
COMPANY AND OUR ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of our Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of our
Company and our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be entered in the register kept by our Company under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to our Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules contained in Appendix 10

were as follows:

EEREETBRAEREALAREEE
TERNRG  HEROREFNERR
KB
R2NI13F12A318 " ARRIEF RE&THR
ABRARAREAEEZE(EER(EHFKE
EHRODEXVE) KRG - BER D RESFT
BERTBERARARB(ES RAERINE
2RATE 2B - SR E £ AR A 8%
THE EETABENE R AR REA RN
HERRABIT :

Approximate

percentage

Name Nature of interest Number of Shares of shareholding

=1 BENE FERROHE BRENEI L

(Note)

(&)

Mr. Zhongguo Sun Beneficiary of a trust 352,200,000 (long position) 19.25%
Zhongguo Sundt FRXHEA 352,200,000 ({F &)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti Deemed interest, 250,129,585 (long position)

IR A interest of controlled company

BERAED (HlRAER) 250,129,585 (4 &)
Beneficial owner 892,000 (long position)
EXEAA 892000 (4 2)

251,021,585 (long position) 13.72%
251,021,585 (47 &)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt Founder of a discretionary trust 183,352,961 (long position) 10.02%
Trevor Raymond Struttse 4 2REEFEHAILA 183352961 (4F&)

Note: There were 1,829,430,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 201 3.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of our Company or their associates (including their spouses and children under
I8 years of age) had any interest or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of our Company or our associated corporations, recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to our
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
OUR COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, to the best knowledge and on behalf of the Director, the
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 pursuant to

Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO as follows:

FTERRREMATREAREBR G
MEZRAR

RWI3FNAIB REEMARKRKE
Z TIALT(RRANESRERTRAR
BRON BB ARB(E S KRB EO)EXVEE
336152 X3P BEXRAA B REN AL A
BRIpSEBRDERIAEIT

Approximate

Number of percentage

Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding
=g ERME FEEROEE ERBAES T
(Note)

(BiEE)

Baslow Technology Limited Beneficial owner 183,352,961 (long position) 10.02%

ERBEBA 183352961 ({7 &)

Baslow Resources Limited Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 183,352,961 (long position) 10.02%

RIEGEED (BHARER)

Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

EaSHAA
Li Hongmei Founder of a discretionary trust
IR EREEFHIA

Rongton Investments Limited ~ Beneficial owner

BERAERAT Rl

34 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
RERABEEBRLF

183352961 ({FA&)

352,200,000 (long position) 19.25%
352,200,000 (F &)

352,200,000 (long position) 19.25%
352,200,000 (&)

250,129,585 (long position) 13.67%

250,129,585 (47&)



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEWRE @
Approximate
Number of percentage
Name Nature of interest Shares of shareholding
=L BEME FEEROEE BREAEDE
(Note)
(F&E)
Equity Trustee Limited Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 535,552,961 (long position) 29.27%
RFEA (RBEFEARIN 535552961 (§8)
Rouser Investments Inc. Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 352,200,000 (long position) 19.25%
HIFHEAER (RHQRES) 352,200,000 (47 &)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner 1,235,385 (long position)
BExsBAA 235,385 (41 &)
Investment manager 13,045,000 (long position)
AR 13,045,000 (4 &)
Custodian corporation/ approved lending agent 114,475,925 (long position)
RENEE AR HRIEA 114475925 (48)
128,756,310 (long position) 7.04%
128,756310 (47 #&)
Custodian corporation/ approved lending agent 114,475,925 (lending pool) 6.26%
RENEE/ BAGHRIEA | 14,475925 (AT {E HARTA)
Prudential Plc Deemed interest, interest of controlled company 108,139,000 (long position) 591%
RIEGAER (EHRRER) 108,139,000 (47 &)
Aberdeen Asset Investment manager 235,183,500 (long position) 12.86%
)

Management Plc and

its Associates (together

“The Aberdeen Group”)

on behalf of Accounts
managed by the
Aberdeen Group

RERE

Note: There were 1,829,430,000 Shares in issue as at 3| December 201 3.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, our Company was not aware of
any person (other than the Directors and chief executive of our Company) who had
an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of our Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by our Company under Section 336 of Part

XV of the SFO.

235,183,500 (418

BfsE: R2013F 128318 BE1T1829430,000 %
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association and there is
no restriction against such rights which would oblige our Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors have any ownership in other businesses which competes or is likely

to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of our Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of our Company were entered into or existed during the

year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Our Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors and our
Company considers that Mr. He Yuanping, Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching to be

independent.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2013, our Group had a total of 3,967 employees (2012: 3,698
employees). Total staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) incurred for the year
ended 31 December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB375 million (2012: RMB226
million). Remuneration packages of the Directors are recommended by the remuneration
committee and approved by the Board. Employee remuneration will be determined by
the management with reference to individual performance and experience and industry

practice.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the year ended 31 December
2013.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

As our Group obtain our major raw material, air, at no cost, electricity, which comprises
over 60% of our total cost of sales, is therefore the largest item of our total purchases. As
our Group normally secure our electricity supply for our on-site gas operations through
contractual arrangements with our on-site customers, our current five largest suppliers
are all our on-site customers. Our Group generally obtain electricity from our on-site
customers at the market rate set by state-owned electricity grid companies. Electricity
is usually supplied to our on-site customers by local electricity companies which are
state-owned enterprises. As our Group generally collect our receivables from our on-
site customers and make payment to on-site customers for our electricity usage at or
around the same time, their payments to us are generally netted off to take into account
our electricity expenses to our on-site customers. Our five largest suppliers together
accounted for approximately 44.2% (2012: 55.4%) of the total purchases for the year
ended 31 December 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2013, our largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6.3% (2012: 18.3%) of our total purchases.

Our five largest customers together accounted for approximately 42.2% (2012: 52.1%)
of our total revenues for the year ended 31 December 2013. For the year ended 3|
December 2013, our largest customer accounted for approximately 15.9% (2012: 17.1%)

of our total turover.

As far as our Company is aware, neither the Directors, their associates, nor those
substantial shareholders who are interested in more than 5% of the Shares or underlying
Shares of our Company had any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers of our

Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The following continuing connected transactions of our Company are subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under

Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
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BACKGROUND

On 28 November 2008, our Group entered into a joint venture agreement with
Hengyang Valin to establish a joint venture with industrial gas supply company, Hengyang
Yingde, in Hengyang city, Hunan province in the PRC. As we own 70% interest in
Hengyang Yingde and have the right to appoint two out of three members of its board
of directors, we have control of Hengyang Yingde. Therefore, our Company accounts for
Hengyang Yingde as our subsidiary. Hengyang Valin owns the remaining 30% interest in
Hengyang Yingde.

As Hengyang Valin is a substantial shareholder of our Company's subsidiary, Hengyang
Valin is a connected person of our Company pursuant to Rule 14A.11(1) of the Listing
Rules. Therefore, any transaction between our Group and Hengyang Valin (including its
associates) are connected transactions of our Company pursuant to Rule [4A.13(1)(a)
of the Listing Rules which will be subject to the requirements under Chapter [4A of the
Listing Rules.

DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSACTIONS

Hengyang Gas Supply Contract

On 28 November 2008, Yingde BVI (on behalf of Hengyang Yingde) entered into a gas
supply contract with Hengyang Valin, or the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract, pursuant to
which Yingde BVI agreed to transfer the benefits and obligations under the Hengyang Gas
Supply Contract to Hengyang Yingde upon its establishment, and Hengyang Yingde would
supply and Hengyang Valin would purchase a specified minimum volume of industrial
gases. The industrial gases supplied to Hengyang Valin by Hengyang Yingde include
oxygen, nitrogen and argon which are the major industrial gas products offered by our
Company. The duration of the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract is 20 years. The end date
of the gas supply contract is 30 October 2029. Under the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract,
Hengyang Valin is required to provide utilities (such as electricity) to Hengyang Yingde for
its gas production facilities located on the site of Hengyang Valin. Hengyang Yingde would
in turn be required to pay Hengyang Valin for those costs of gas production, such as the

utility costs and rents for occupation of the site.
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Gas Supply Transactions and Supply-related Transactions

The gas supply transactions from Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin are referred to
as the Gas Supply Transactions. The basis of pricing of the Gas Supply Transactions was
reached between our Group and Hengyang Valin through arm's length negotiations
taking into account factors including the price offered by competitors, our Company’s
investment in capital expenditure, the costs of gas production (including the costs charged
by Hengyang Valin for the Supply-related Transactions described below), reputation and
quality of Hengyang Valin, and the likely retum to the shareholders of our Company. In
connection with the Gas Supply Transactions, our Group will enter into certain related
transactions with Hengyang Valin. These transactions involve payment of expenses
(including but not limited to electricity expense, steam expense and rental expense) from
Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin under the Hengyang Gas Supply Contract, or the
Supply-related Transactions. The basis of pricing of the Supply-related Transactions was
reached between our Company and Hengyang Valin through arm’s length negotiations
taking into account factors including the price charged by the local utility companies and

the rentals charged by landlords of adjacent properties.

Transaction Amounts for the Year Ended 3|1 December 2013

Prior to the commencement of gas supplies by Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin in
April 2009, there were no transactions between our Group and Hengyang Valin. The
amount for the Gas Supply Transactions for the year ended 3| December 2013 was
approximately RMB81 million (2012: RMB83 million), which represented the on-site sales
revenue of Hengyang Yingde. The amount for the Supply-related Transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2013 of gas supply by Hengyang Yingde to Hengyang Valin was
approximately RMB29 million (2012: RMB39 million), which represented the electricity

and water expenses of Hengyang Yingde.

The annual cap set for the total Supply-related Transactions for the year ended 3|
December 2013 was RMB65 million (2012: RMB65 million). The actual aggregate amount
Supply-related Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB29 million
(2012: RMB39 million).

The annual cap set for the total Gas Supply Transactions for the year ended 31 December
2013 was RMBI 10 million (2012: RMBI 10 million). The actual aggregate amount Gas
Supply Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMB8I million (2012:
RMB83 million).
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In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
has granted a waiver to our Company from strict compliance with the disclosure or where

appropriate, the shareholders” approval requirements stipulated in Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules subject to certain conditions.

Our independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected

transactions and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of our Group;

(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(3)  in accordance with the relevant agreements entered into on terms which are

fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of our Company as a

whole.

The Board has received a letter from the auditors of the Company stating that the

continuing connected transactions:

. have received the approval of the Board;

. were in accordance with the pricing policy as stated on page 39 of this annual

report;

. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

continuing connected transactions; and

. have not exceeded the annual cap amounts as set out above for the year ended 31

December 201 3.
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The Directors conducted review of related party transactions of the Group during the
year under review and were not aware of any other transactions which were required
to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules saved as those

transactions already disclosed by our Company.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is publicly available to
our Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, our Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of more than 25% of our Company's issued Shares as required under

the Listing Rules during the year.
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OTHER REQUIRED DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 AND RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Our Company entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks on 4 March
2011 (the “2011 Facility Agreement”) for a 3-year term loan facility of up to USD150
million. Pursuant to the 201 | Facility Agreement, it will be an event triggering mandatory
prepayment, inter alia, if: (a) any one or more of Peace & Smooth (Hong Kong)
Investment Limited, Rongton, Baslow and Bubbly Brooke solely (where there is only one
controlling shareholder) or jointly (where there is more than one controlling shareholder)
cease to control the Company or cease to own legally and beneficially directly or
indirectly through wholly-owned subsidiaries 35% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company; or (b) either of Baslow and Bubbly Brooke ceases to own legally and
beneficially directly or indirectly through wholly-owned subsidiaries any issued share capital
of the Company. The 201 | Facility Agreements was released on 20 May 2013 and we

have fully repaid the loans borrowed under the 201 | Facility Agreement.

Our Company further entered into a facility agreement with a syndicate of banks on
16 April 2012 (the 2012 Facility Agreement™) for a 3-year term loan facility of up to
USD 150 million. Pursuant to the 2012 Facility Agreement, it will be an event triggering
mandatory prepayment, inter alia, if: (a) any one or more of Peace & Smooth (Hong
Kong) Investment Limited, Rongton, Baslow and Bubbly Brooke, jointly cease to control
the Company or cease to own legally and beneficially directly or indirectly through
wholly- owned subsidiaries 35% or more of the issued share capital of the Company; (b)
either of Baslow and Bubbly Brooke sells more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company that it owned as at 16 April 2012; or (c) Mr. Zhongguo Sun ceases to be the
chief executive officer or the chairman of the Company, or Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt
ceases to be the chief operating officer of the Company. The 2012 Facility Agreement was
released on 20 May 2013 and we have fully repaid the loans borrowed under the 2012
Facility Agreement.
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Our Company further entered into a facility agreement with China Development Bank
Corporation Hong Kong Branch on 22 November 2013 (the “2013 Facility Agreement”)
for a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$1,170 million. Pursuant to the 2013 Facility
Agreement, it will be an event triggering mandatory prepayment, inter alia, if: (a) any one
or more of Rongton, Baslow and Bubbly Brooke jointly cease to control the Company
or cease to own legally and beneficially directly or indirectly through wholly-owned
subsidiaries 35% or more of the issued share capital of the Company; (b) either of Baslow
or Bubbly Brooke sells or disposes of the issued share capital of the Company directly or
indirectly which in aggregate constitute more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company that beneficially owned by it directly or indirectly as at 22 November 2013; or
(c) other than, in each case, by reason of death, mental incapacity or critical illness, Mr.
Zhongguo Sun ceases to be the chief executive officer or the chairman of the Company,

or Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt ceases to be the Director.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
Our Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code") as the code

of conduct regarding the securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with standards required according to the Model Code

during the year ended 31 December 201 3.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Our Company is committed to maintaining a high level of corporate governance practices.
Corporate governance practices adopted by our Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 49 to 62.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Our Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee™) comprising
all three existing independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. He Yuanping (Chairman

of the Audit Committee), Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 3| December 2013, and is of the view that our Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 are prepared in accordance with the
applicable accounting standards, laws and regulations, and appropriate disclosures have

already been made.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of our Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 have been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants. A resolution for its re-
appointment as auditor of our Company for the ensuring year will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Zhongguo Sun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2014
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Health & Safety, Environment & Efficiency Report
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INTRODUCTION

Our Company, established in 2001, currently employs approximately 4,000 people in
China and has become the leading supplier of on-site gas solutions. Our philosophy is to
maintain high sustainable growth while at the same time giving maximum consideration
for the health and safety of our employees, compliance with regulations and taking
significant consideration of the environment we live in and to achieve maximum energy
efficiency in our operations. This year, in terms of revenue, we have become the number
one company in China, which increased our responsibility for leading the continual
improvement in all the areas of safety, environment and efficiency. We have this continual
improvement policy in place and set our goals for our managers and workforce alike to
endeavor to meet them with conviction and pride. As an organization, we hope we can

ultimately achieve a goal of zero accident, zero emissions and maximum efficiency.

HEALTH & SAFETY

In any organization, it is very important to create a happy and safe environment to work
in. Moreover, safety is so important in our lives, not only at the work place, but in all
aspects of our daily lives, 24 hours per day. We, the management of our Company,
therefore have great emphasis on education and training of all individuals to ensure that
they have great awareness and understanding of safety such that accidents can be reduced
or eliminated both at work and at home. In addition, we emphasise during our training,
on modification of behavior, to create attitudes that are conducive to low risk of accident,
and our transport driver programme focuses on “defensive driving” — an important feature
to reduce risk. Our policy therefore is very much about preventative measures. Our

continual improvement programmes have set the following future targets:

Personnel accident rate of 0.46 LTIR (per | million hours)

Transport logistics accident rate of 1.5 (per | million km)

We invite, on a six-month basis, qualified third party auditors to check our methods and

records.
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Our Company is totally committed to providing and promoting welfare for all of its
employees. We provide all the necessary safety clothing and body protection equipment
as appropriate for each particular environment. We also provide employees with leisure
activity rooms to exercise and alleviate stress while enhancing communication. We
implements all types of measures to protect employees from potential risks. The Group
makes use of safety, health, environment and quality (“SHEQ") management system
to identify potential hazards in the workplace and establish risk control standards and
guidelines. Moreover, payment of social insurance and arrangement of regular physical

examination offer guarantee to employees’ health.

We have a policy to continue seeking and improving occupational health management
plans and protecting employee’s physical and psychological health, so as to provide

favorable work condition and reduce accident rate caused by human factors.
ENVIRONMENT & SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In our business, noise produced during production of our products is one of the main
environmental issues. We reduce this by applying all the noise attenuation standards but in
addition, our engineers are charged with continually seeking technological improvements
and their work is motivated by our commitment to sustainable development, newly
implemented environmental protection laws and regulations, and higher environmental
performance standards. Globalization not only promptes formation of new market and
environmental protection laws and regulations, but also enhances awareness of the
limitation of natural resources. The education and training we impart to all our employees,
in production areas and offices, emphasises the need to take care of and understand the
value of all material resources, which in tumn creates an awareness of the environmental

impact of needless waste.
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Health & Safety, Environment & Efficiency Report continued)
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EMISSIONS TO AIR

Apart from the emission of greenhouse gases, our Company also monitors the emission
of air pollutants. The Group's air separation equipment almost has no direct emission
into the air during normal production. However, during other production process (mainly
by our customers), inorganic gases such as CO, SO,, NO,, NH, and volatile organic
compounds (“VOCs") are emitted into the air. Emission of VOCs occurs in the metal
coating and cleaning processes during the assembly of cylinders, tanks and devices. The
Company works with its customers on developing solution for reducing emission into the

air.

WASTE

As previously mentioned, we carry out training that creates awareness of the
environmental impact of needless waste. The processes employed make continuous effort
to reduce or eliminate waste generation and adopt recycling processes wherever possible.
Any unavoidable waste is treated in an environmental manner so as to comply with local
laws and regulations. According to Chinese law, waste materials are divided into two
categories, hazardous and non-hazardous. Wastes mostly produced during our processes
include chemicals, those containing metals and cylinders reaching end of service life and
these are dealt with appropriately according to those regulations that apply. We design,
when possible, production closed-loop systems that help improve the utilization rate of

materials and resources so that waste generation is minimized.

WATER

Water is an extremely important and valuable resource. The production processes
employed by our business utilizes water, mainly (around 85%) for cooling purposes and
these are continually recycled. During the recycling process, the water needs to be cooled
and there are some small losses to atmosphere and therefore needs to be topped up.
Less than 5% of our water is used in chemical reaction processes and other for heating
local office buildings. The very small amounts of waste water created will be purified or

fed into the local industrial treatment system.
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Health & Safety, Environment & Efficiency Report ccontinued
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POWER & ENERGY

Our production processes consume electricity and other forms of energy. Actually almost
80% of our operation cost is power and therefore, the management of the Company is
extremely focused on reducing this, not only from a cost perspective, but also from an
environmental perspective. We have, in recent years, created a team focused on reducing
power consumption and this team is responsible for examining machinery efficiencies,
process design, project engineering design, energy recovery systems, etc. We are currently
establishing continual reform measures that will improve energy efficiency and reduce
emission of CO» and waste, thus progressing toward the goal of increasing efficiency by 1%

annually.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

The Board is committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance to ensure
effective and responsible leadership for the Company and the protection of shareholders'

interests.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2013, our Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except for the deviation from the code provision A.2.1
of the Code which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be segregated. As at the date of this annual report, the chairman and the chief executive
officer of our Company is Mr. Zhongguo Sun. However, the Board considers that this
structure will not impair the balance of power and the authority of the Board. The Board
currently comprises of three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, with independent non-executive Directors representing 50% of the Board,
which is higher than the requirements under the Listing Rules. Such a high percentage
of independent non-executive Directors on the Board can ensure that their views carry

significant weight and reflect the independence of the Board.

Mr. Sun was one of the main founders of our Group. He has been responsible for
operational management since the establishment of our Group. He has played an
important role during our expansion. Mr. Sun possesses rich working experience in the
industrial gas industry business and excellent operational management ability. At present,
the Board believes that it is beneficial to the management and development of our
Group's businesses with Mr. Sun being both the chairman and chief executive officer as it
helps to expedite the Board's decision-making. The Board would still consider segregating

the role of chairman and chief executive officer to comply with the Code if appropriate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Our Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding the

securities transactions by the Directors.

The Board is pleased to confirm, after specific enquiries with all Directors, that all
Directors have fully complied with the standards required under the Model Code during

the year ended 3| December 201 3.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all times met Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

Our Company has received annual confirmation from each of the three independent non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Our Company considers that all existing independent non-executive Directors are
independent parties in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules and are free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of

their independent judgements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for achieving the corporate goals, formulating the development
strategy, regularly reviewing the organizational structure, and monitoring the business
activities and the performance of management so as to protect and maximize the interests
of our Company and our shareholders. Matters relating to the daily operations of our
Group are delegated to the management. During the year, the Board considered and
approved the annual budget and its performance under management supervision together
with the business reports from the management. The Board also reviewed and approved
the final results for the year ended 31 December 2013 and other critical business
operations. The Board also assessed the intemnal control and the financial matters of our

Group.

Board Composition

The Board currently consists of six members, including;

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhongguo Sun (chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Zhao Xiangti

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Fuya

Dr. Wang Ching

Mr. He Yuanping (appointed on 23 December 2013)
Mr. Xu Zhao (resigned on 23 December 201 3)

Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt, Mr. Zheng Fuya and Mr. He Yuanping being eligible, have

offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The members of the Board represent a diverse and rich industry background with
appropriate professional qualifications. Please refer to the section headed “Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management” for the profiles of our Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report continued)
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To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board. Board members are free to

exercise their independent judgment.

Under code provision A4.| of the Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Mr. Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching, our independent non-executive Directors, are
each appointed for a term of three years, subject to re-election when appropriate by
our Company in general meeting. The term of Mr. He Yuanping, our independent non-
executive Director, will expire on the date of the annual general meeting of our Company
to be held by 30 June 2016.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee meetings
and the general meeting of our Company held during the year ended 3| December 2013

is set out in the table below:
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2013AGM 2013 EGM Board Board Meeting Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
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Name of Directors Exps BEAE RFEAS EEEEE S2ULFEXR ZE5883 ZES82 ZE882 ZE8E8R
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo SunfE 4 I/] I/1 66 100% - - - -
Mr. Zhao Xiangti HIRR L. I/1 0/l 506 83% - - I/] I/]
Mr. Trevor Raymond Strutt ~ Trevor Raymond
Struttst & /1 I 6/6 100% - - - -
Independent Non-executive BV FHITEE
Directors
Mr. Zheng Fuya BEoEE I/1 0/l 66 100% 33 I/1 I/1 /1
Dr. Wang Ching FRET /1 I 6/6 100% 33 /1 - ol
Mr. He Yuanping (appointed {ilFE504E
on 23 December 2013) (720135
12ABHEZA) - - - - - - - -
Mr. Xu Zhao (resignedon  #REASEAE (20135
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors at least 14 days before the

meetings. For other Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

The agendas and accompanying Board papers were given to all Directors in a timely
manner. All Directors are properly discussed on issues arising at Board meetings by the

chairman.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information with the advice of
the company secretary, to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. Upon making request to the Board, all Directors may obtain
independent professional advice at our Company's expense for carrying out their

functions.

The company secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the chairman and the
chief executive on governance matters, facilitating induction and professional development
of Director, and taking and keeping minutes of all Board committee meetings. Draft and
final versions of minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comment within a

reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

Director’s Training

Each newly appointed director will be offered training by the Company upon the
appointment, so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the Company's
business and they are fully aware of their duties as director under the laws and regulations.
In 2013, the Company appointed Mr. He Yuanping as our Independent Non-executive
Director, who has been provided training regarding issues on directors’ duties and the

Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company also issues latest information regarding corporate governance
and directors’ responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations to the directors, to ensure their awareness of their responsibilities under
the laws and regulations. All Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant. Directors are requested to

provide their records of trainings they received in 2013 to the Company for record.
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Details of trainings that the Directors participated in 2013 are as follows:
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I Mr. Xu Zhao resigned as our independent non-executive Director on 23 November 2013.

2. Mr. He Yuanping was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 23
December 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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As a part of our training program for the Board, all Directors were provided with reports
from time to time the latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime during the year under review. A
number of reading materials were also provided to all Directors to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills. In the future, our Company will continue to organize
various training and seminars for the Directors on the professional knowledge and latest

development of regulatory requirements related to director's duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity
Our Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify our Directors
and senior officers for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended

31 December 2013, no claim has been made against our Directors and senior officers.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee and the compliance committee
(collectively the "Board Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of our Company's

affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in

appropriate circumstances, at our Company's expense.
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Audit Committee

The Board established the Audit Committee on |2 September 2009, with the written
terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mr. He Yuanping
(appointed on 23 December 2013) and comprises two other members, namely Mr.
Zheng Fuya and Dr. Wang Ching, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Xu Zhao has resigned as the chairman and member of the Audit Committee with
effect from 23 December 2013.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditors, review the financial statements,
oversee and provide material advice in respect our financial reporting system and oversee

the internal control procedures of our Company.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee together with the management has
reviewed, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed
the Group's internal control and financial reporting matters, including review of the
annual results for the year ended 3| December 2012 and the interim results for the
six months ended 30 June 2013, with recommendation to the Board for approval. The
Audit Committee has also recommended to the Board that, subject to our shareholders'
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, KPMG, be re-appointed as the

external auditor of our Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Board established the remuneration committee on |2 September 2009, with the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the year under
review, Dr. Wang Ching was the chairman of the remuneration committee and Mr. He
Yuanping (appointed on 23 December 2013) and Mr. Zheng Fuya were the other two
members of the remuneration committee, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. Mr. Xu Zhao has resigned as member of the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 23 December 2013.

The primary functions of the remuneration committee are to evaluate the performance
and make recommendations on the remuneration package of our Directors and senior
management, our retirement scheme and our performance assessment system and bonus

and commission policies.

The remuneration of Directors are based on their skills, knowledge, involvement in our
Company's affairs and the performance, together with reference to the profitability of our

Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and prevailing market conditions.
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No Director or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection with his
or her own remuneration. The remuneration committee may also consult the chairman
about their proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive Directors and has
access to professional advice if necessary. The major objective of the remuneration policy
is to ensure that our Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high caliber team

which is essential to the success of our Company.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed, amongst others, the
performance and remuneration policy of the executive Directors; and the appointment
letter and remuneration package of Mr. He Yuanping as new independent non-executive
Director, chairman and member of the audit committee, member of the remuneration
committee and member of the nomination committee were discussed and recommended

to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Board established the nomination committee on 12 September 2009, with the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Mr.
Zheng Fuya and comprises two other members, namely Mr. He Yuanping (appointed
on 23 December 2013) and Mr. Zhao Xiangti. Mr. Xu Zhao has resigned as member of
Nomination Committee with effect from 23 December 201 3.

The primary functions of the nomination committee are to make recommendations to

our Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on our Board.

The duties of the nomination committee also includes reviewing the structure, number
and composition of the Board; submitting proposals to the Board on the appointment of
chief executive officer; reviewing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and submitting proposals to the Board. The authority and duties of the

nomination committee are clearly sets out in its terms of reference.

During the year under review, the nomination committee recommended to the Board
the matters concerning the re-election of Directors by shareholders pursuant to the
Avrticles of Association having due regard to their performance and ability to continue to
contribute to the Board. The nomination committee also reviewed the structure, number,
composition and diversity of the Board and the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; considered the background, working experience and professionalism
of Mr. He Yuanping and pursuant to the Company's Board Diversity Policy (as defined
hereinafter) and recommended to the Board for his appointment as new independent

non-executive Director.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) on
August 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against

appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in addition to educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to

the Board.

The nomination committee monitors, from time to time, the implementation of the policy,

and reviews, as appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness of the policy.

The nomination committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure its

effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the Board Diversity Policy.

Compliance Committee

The Board established the compliance committee on |2 September 2009 with the
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It is chaired by Dr. Wang
Ching (appointed on 24 June 2013) and comprises two other members, namely Mr. Zhao
Xiangti and Mr. Zheng Fuya. Mr. Zhongguo Sun has resigned as chairman and member of
the Compliance Committee with effect from 24 June 2013, but remains as chairman of
the Board, executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company. The primary
functions of the compliance committee are to ensure compliance on regulatory matters

and corporate governance.

The work performed by the compliance committee during the year under review included
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system and making
recommendation to the Board for improvement of internal control, credit control and risk
management. In addition, the compliance committee reviewed our Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, our Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance by the Directors of the Model
Code and our Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the consolidated financial statements of the annual and
interim reports. When the Directors were aware of material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon our Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, such uncertainties would be clearly and prominently set out

and discussed in detail in this Corporate Governance Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal controls of our Group are designed to help our Group protect its assets and
information. The presence of internal controls empowers our Group to implement best
business practices in challenging business environments. Our Group's internal controls
cover a number of in-house procedures and policies. The system comprises, among
others, the relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management

procedures.

The Board is responsible for our Group's system of internal control and its effectiveness. It
has established an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by our Group, including strategic planning, corporate governance, financial
reporting, core business processes, and compliance and risk management. Our Group
has conducted a high level review on the significant risks faced by our Group and the

effectiveness of the internal control system for the year ended 31 December 2013,

The Board is not aware of any significant intemal control weaknesses nor significant breach

of limits or risk management policies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Our Group's independent auditor is KPMG. KPMG is responsible for auditing and forming

an independent opinion on our Group's annual consolidated financial statements.

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to our Company’s

auditor, KPMG, are as follows:

BYGHMME
AEENBUGBMAEFREEHA -
ESAEHMEBMARERAREFREAH
HHHRRREEBUES -

EOEFERN  ENRENAREZSMESE
SETENEBAOMEMT

Year ended 3| December

BZENA3NALEE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Audit service (including annual audit and interim review) EGRB (RRFEEZ LT HEMRSE) 4211 4,647
Non-audit services BRI 2,783 690
6,994 5337
Non-audit service includes tax service. R B IER B BERA o
JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES BEATME
Ms. Wong Sze Wing and Ms. Mok Ming Wai are our Company's joint company secretaries AT TEHERELT RN RN A G

and each of them has taken no less than |15 hours of relevant professional training during

the year ended 31 December 201 3.

The primary corporate contact person of Ms. Mok Ming Wai, a director of KCS Hong
Kong Limited, is Ms. Wong Sze Wing, the other joint company secretary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the

election of individual Directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting.

Resolutions put forward at our shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of our Company and of

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange after each shareholders’ meeting,

GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of Articles of Association, an extraordinary general meetings
(the “"EGM") may be convened by the Board on requisition of one or more
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of our Company. Such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) concemed as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) concermed by the

Company.

The requisitionist(s) must state the objects clearly in the requisition, sign the
requisition and deposit the same to the Board or the company secretary or the

primary contact person of our Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions at the
general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2013 Revision) or the
Articles of Association. However, shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at general meetings may achieve so by means of convening an EGM following the

procedures set out in paragraph (i) above.

As regards the procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a

Director, they are available on our Company's website (www.yingdegas.com).

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may send written

enquires to our Company.

Note: Our Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquires.

(ii)

(iif)
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Primary Contact Person
Shareholders may send their requisitions, proposed resolutions or enquiries as mentioned

in (i), (i) and (iii) above to the primary contact person of our Company as set out below:

TEBREA

BRI A 4R B S (i) » (i) R (i) B ER B

K REMAZRIEAT TAAANTHE
EHEA

Name: Ms. Wong Sze Wing B - Elif e

Address:  Room 3212-13, 32/F, Tower Two, Times Square, st ERNBERRBS _E=1T_8
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong 3212-13%

Fax: 852-3100 0069 fEE:  852-3100 0069

Email: huangsiying@yingdegas.com EFHM : huangsiying@yingdegas.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above

address, and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give

REELRA RRUARRDEARENE
HEX  BASEH IBARTFERLMT)
B baswit - WIREE RS BEHARS D

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law. BAUGR ES - REGEEITRREZEX
Mg HE o
INVESTOR RELATIONS REEBR

During the year under review, our Company made no changes to the Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of our Articles of Association is available on our

Company's website and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange'’s website.

Further information about investor relations are set out on page 19.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of our Group and ensure that financial statements are in accordance with

statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon our Company's ability to

continue as a going concern.

GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 M A% B A R S

epnac

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHARHOLDERS OF
YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yingde Gases Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™) set out on pages
65 to 185, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
[0 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

|8 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
BRI R AR & W

for the year ended 31 December 2013
BEWBFNAIALFE

2013 2012
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
M AR®TR ARBTE

Turnover WA 4 6,865,508 4955933
Cost of sales HEMAK (4,734662) (3382812
Gross profit E7 2,130,846 1,573,121
Other revenue and net income Hfth Mo SO 39,062 20,231
Selling expenses HEER (225,464) (181262)
Administrative expenses EREH (417,560) (310,373)
Profit from operations Reha 1,526,884 1,101,717
Finance income KA 5(a) 78,143 18961
Finance costs BIRRR 5(a) (381,536) (209811)
Share of results of associates Y NE 3 (18,409) (3:459)
Share of results of joint ventures BIEEERAIER (1,469) (279)
Profit before taxation BRE A1 AUE 5 1,203,613 907,129
Income tax PG 6 (294,001) (135,844)
Profit and total other comprehensive income RERBREMGEREEE

for the year 909,612 771,285
Attributable to: UT&AELR:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERFEA 9 907,896 770,117
Non-controlling interests JEERR AR R A 2R 1,716 1,168
Profit and total other comprehensive income AERBREMGEEREAEE

for the year 909,612 771,285
Earnings per share (RMB) BREMN(ARERT) 10

Basic =N 0.502 0426

Diluted g 0.501 0426

The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends ESEES 85 MM ARMBRENAK
B0 o AEFBEEN T ARARROBEFE
set out in Note 29(b). T 29(b)

payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are

Annual Report 2013 £ #{



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& PR F IR R

at 31 December 2013
R2013% 128318

2013 2012

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

P T ARETR ARETZT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net m¥ - BERERE FE I 9,400,328 5966,758
Construction in progress IR 12 2,550,113 3,793,763
Lease prepayments MEBMHE 13 317,638 311,331
Intangible assets ‘B EE 14 56,514 59,265
Receivables under finance lease F&“H&nﬂéﬁﬁm 15 12,336 13,048
Interest in associates RECE R RIS 17 684,830 706,155
Interest in joint ventures REERAmER 18 223,550 38,505
Other non-current assets HiERYEE 19 947,000 111,255
Deferred tax assets EEMIBEEE 6(d) 87,765 59,766
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 14,281,074 12,059,846
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 20 68,562 61018
Trade and other receivables R M5 R % e L M KR 21 1,792,446 1,319,667
Receivables under finance lease EREEBERER |5 2,117 2,117
Income tax recoverable R EiEE 6(c) - 362
Pledged bank deposits BEMIRITER 2 65,023 503,491
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 23 342,546 846,600
Total current assets RBEEARE 2,270,694 2,733,255
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings &0 24 1,194,579 3263317
Trade and other payables FE 5 AR 50 S EL A JE £+ 3X08 25 2,181,696 2448711
Obligations under finance lease MEHEAE 26 257,081 37,099
Income tax payable eSS HE 6(c) 109,981 70,221
Total current liabilities RBREAR 3,743,337 5819,348
Net current liabilities REEERE (1,472,643) (3,086,093)
Total assets less current liabilities BEARRRDRE 12,808,431 8973753
The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements. F65HZ S 185 BT ARMBRKRANAK

7o e

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEERBREBAERAR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position continued)

BHBBARRR @0

at 3| December 2013
R2013F 124318

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB000
P T ARBTRT AR®TRL
Non-current liabilities krnBEE
Borrowings fE 24 5818610 2,864,774
Obligations under finance lease RMEREGRE 26 633,788 487,267
Other non-current liabilities HERBEE 51,020 =
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAR 6(d) 75,245 74,561
Total non-current liabilities FREABEEE 6,578,663 3,426,602
Net assets EERE 6,229,768 5,547,151
Equity E#
Share capital R 28 12 12
Reserves B 6,124,667 5485967
Total equity attributable to equity AAREGREAENL
shareholders of the Company EEAH 6,124,679 5485979
Non-controlling interests FERBRRER 105,089 61,172
Total equity ERBH 6,229,768 5547151

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2014.

Zhongguo Sun
Zhongguo Sun
Director
2

The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements.

EEERN014E3 0 18 Bt RIFRETIE o

Zhao Xiangti
HIEE
Director
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Statement of Financial Position

BB AR &

at 31 December 2013
R2013% 128318

2013 2012

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Wi ARBTR  ARBTR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment, net m¥ - BERERE FE 667 12
Interest in subsidiaries HITE AR ER 16 4,742,986 4011033
Total non-current assets FRBEELH 4,743,653 4,011,145
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H A el 5B 21 1,097 1,251
Pledged bank deposits BEERRITER 2 - 34,009
Cash and cash equivalents BekBReEFEY 23 14,327 4987
Total current assets B EEHEE 15,424 40,247
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings a3 24 - 1,618014
Other payables HAth e 308 25 2,569,239 52,568
Total current liabilities REEEAR 2,569,239 1,670,582
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (2,553,815)  (1,630,335)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRDAR 2,189,838 2,380,810
Non-current liabilities *¥nBeE
Borrowings & 24 153,530 =
Total non-current liabilities *RBEELE 153,530 -
Net assets BEEFRE 2,036,308 2,380,810
The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements. F65HZE S 185 BT ARMBRKRAAK

# o o

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Statement of Financial Position (continved)

B FEAROR 3R o)

at 3| December 2013
R2013F 124318

2013 2012
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
M AR®TR ARBTE

Equity B

Share capital BRA 28 12 12
Reserves [ 29(a) 2,036,296 2,380,798
Total equity BmAE 2,036,308 2380810

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 March 2014,

Zhongguo Sun
Zhongguo Sun
Director
EZ

The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements.

EEERN0145E3 8 18 B A RIFRETIZ

Zhao Xiangti
HEE
Director
EF

SEES 185 BN AR B IR MNAEK
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SHERBDE

8 for the year ended 3| December 2013
BE03F1A3BLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAFRGEA AR
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
FER

kA ROEE iERE  HitRE  REEF ax RRESE BRAEER
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i AR%Tn ARETT ARETR ARMTR ARETR AR%Tn ARETR ARETR
(Note 28)  (Note 29(c)) (Note 29(d)) (Note 29(e))
(zE28)  (HsE29(0) (M#E9d) (FtsE29e)

At | January 2012 R12F 1A 1B 12 2983818 401,862 (313696) 1919287 4991283 12068 5003351
Total comprehensive income REGANEREE

for the year - - - - 70,117 710,117 168 771,285
Appropriations B - = 89228 - (89.228) - = -
Dividends approved in respect of BALEEN

the previous year BERRE 29(b) = = = - (234888)  (234889) - (234889)
Capital contribution from SRR T E

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - 7403 7403
Effect on equity arising from KRR R ER

the acquisition of EENRE

non-controlling interest - - - (40,533) - (40,533) 40,533 -
At 31 December 2012 R2012F 124318 2 2983818 491,090 (354229) 2365288 5485979 61,172 5547151
At | January 2013 RW3FIAIE 12 2983818 491,00  (354229) 2365288 5485979 61,172 5,547,151
Total comprehensive income REGElmEE

for the year - - - - 907,896 907,896 1,716 909,612
Eflect on Share Allotment Scheme IR RLEGHEI /2 7 - - - 1,829 - 1,829 - 1,829
Appropriations B - - 130787 - (130787) - - -
Dividends approved in respect of BELEFER

the previous year BERRE 29(b) - - - - (271,025)  (271,025) - (271,025)
Capital contribution from FEREREE

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - 32,000 32,000
Effect on equity anising from LN 3

the acquisition EENRE

of a subsidiary - - - - - - 10,201 10,201
At 31 December 2013 RWB3ENA3IA 12 2983818 621877 (352400) 2871372 6,124,679 105089 6,229,768

The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements. B EEE 185 BN AR EREMNARK
2
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SHRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2013
BEWBFNAIALFE

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Byt AR®TRT ARBTR
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation B 25t A 1) 1,203,613 907,129
Adjustments for: HRIER
Depreciation e 505,347 348,45
Amortisation i [1,521 9,153
Finance income KA (78,143) (18961)
Finance costs TSR 381,536 209811
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEWZ% - BE kX EHEEFE 166 433
Share of results of associates JEIEME AR R 18,409 3459
Share of results of joint ventures RN 1,469 279
Increase in inventories FEEM (7,544) (28,695)
Increase in trade and other receivables B OB 0 Lt B L R SE (454,777) (99,800)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables FE 5 BR B0 S EL A JE A 3008
2,/ Ci) 135,392 (20953)
1,716,989 1,310,306
Interest received EWFIE 25319 16,057
Interest paid BERFE (506,408) (262,406)
Income tax paid [RERPEIRE) (281,012) (165,605)
Income tax refund FrgtiRE - 20,743
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHFAESNRELFHR 954,888 919,095
Investing activities REEH
Capital expenditure BRI (2,691,154)  (3,782,046)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BRI ETORD /(2 m) 438,468 (344,540)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment &% « BE KR EFTEFUA 2,541 3813
Collection of receivables under finance lease B R EEER 2,245 2,245
Payment to a shareholder B ES TP - 111,285
Repayment from a shareholder REREERE - (111,285)
Payment for other investment in equity securities HRABHFRE T IFIR (3,600) (8,400)
Payment for investment in associates REBE R NFIE - (309,858)
Dividend received from an associate B B A RIIR S 1,500 =
Payment for investment in joint ventures KRERE DRI NHE (154,023) (38784)
Repayment from/(advance to) an associate BEREER/(fEH)HRE 28,000 (74,193)
Loan to a joint venture AE & A RS FIE - (21,070)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired W Bt B 2 A M B B9 3008
MRS 18 5,229 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMANRSFE (2,370,794) (4572,833)
The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements. F6SBEER 85 BRMT RAMBRENAK
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued)

EHBEESRER )

for the year ended 31 December 2013
BE03F1A3BLFE

2013 2012

Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Pt AR®TR ARBTR
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from loans fERATER0R 1,598,545 4,173,563
Repayment of borrowings BEER (3,404,109) (1,245815)
Proceeds from finance lease transactions RERERHHEHE 400,000 400,000
Payment of obligations under finance lease 1@ EREMEREX K (83,346) (10,025)
Proceeds from convertible notes and warrants TR R &5 K 7R Hﬂg F)ﬂ 7] 153,313 -
Proceeds from Senior notes TRERBMENIE 2,603,370 =
(Repayment to)/advances from associates (% 2/ BB D AR (180,000) 450,000
Advances from joint ventures e B RAIBARE 93,528 =
Advances from a shareholder T EXEYN - 66,172
Repayment to a shareholder BRI (8,050) (58,122)
Repayment to a non-controlling shareholder {BI& FE MR AR R FRIE (6,880) =
Capital injection from non-controlling shareholders R RE BB RIE 32,000 7403
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder ST 4 R AR R AR B - (6,480)
Dividend paid to equity shareholders of the Company {4 AR AR E FIAR B (271,025) (234,888)
Net cash generated from financing activities METBRENRLSFE 927,346 3,541,808
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERREEEMHIFE (488,560) (111,930)
Cash and cash equivalents at | January RIAIBRERRLEEY 846,600 958,280
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NEERSBHNY (15,494) 250
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RI2A3I ABRERASZEEY 23 342,546 846,600
Note FEE
Non-cash transaction FELETS

Pursuant to the Company's Share Allotment Scheme (Note 27), the Company lent loan of
HKD 158,878,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB125,974,000) and allotted 22,600,000 shares
to the Trustee at an issue price of HKD7.03 per share during the year. The Trustee subscribed the

shares allotted on behalf of the trust and settled the subscription amount out of the loans from the

Company accordingly.

The notes on pages 65 to 185 form part of these financial statements.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R AR Pt

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Yingde Gases Group Company Limited (the “Company"") was incorporated in the

Cayman Islands on 25 September 2007 as an exempted company with limited

liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and

revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group)

are principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in the People's

Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Company's shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 8 October 2009.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which
collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs") and
Interpretations promulgated by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB"). These financial statements also comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant

accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior

accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

At 31 December 2013, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMBI,472,643,000, which includes bank and other loans repayable
within one year of RMB1,194,579,000. In preparing the financial statements,
the directors have considered the Group's sources of liquidity and believe
that adequate funding is available to fulfill the Group's short-term obligations
and capital expenditure requirements. Accordingly, the financial statements
have been prepared on a basis that the Group will be able to continue as a

going concern. Further details are set out in Note 32(a).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the Group's interest in

associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements
is the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out

below:

= financial instruments classified as available-for-sale or as trading

secunities (see Note 2(f)); and

= derivative financial instruments (see Note 2(g)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily

apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that have
significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

2

FESHBR@E)
b) MBERRNEREE (K)

AT A BB B HRE L
H®AE - EEERIELAAE - &
SRR - @R EBRNERUR
BE  Aff  WANERNZ2HH
7 - BEEMMBIMBEMRRIIR
BELERMEUFERTRBR
HE AR EMAMRE  EREHE
ERRET  ERHBEENE
ENREEENER - BRERA
G BELA AR -

B R RERATIE
B - it TR R
SMBEELYE  AABLIR
SEHHBEARE | W {ETH
BiTHRE RAKEHEELY
8 - ISR BRI
AR -

ERAERDGEREEE B2
EHAHMBRRAEATENH
i REAHEEEETEANIR
JEE MR 3F At o

Annual Report 2013 £ #{

75



76

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

YINGDE
BERE

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of new IFRSs and amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group's

financial statements:

- Amendments to |AS |, Presentation of financial statements —

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

- IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

— IFRS I'l, Joint arrangements

- IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

- IFRS |3, Fair value measurement

= Revised IAS |9, Employee benefits

= Annual Improvements to IFRSs —2009-201 1 Cycle

- Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
SEBERAF
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
The Group has assessed the impact of these amendments and new
standards and concluded that the adoption of them has no significant impact

on the Group's result of operation and financial position.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not

yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but

only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests
which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'

proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with Notes 2(0) or (p)

depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no

adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture (see Note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the

investment is classified as held for sale.

Associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management, including

participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the Company and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and

have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the investee's net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see Note 2(k)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees' other
comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate or the
joint venture, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment

continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

Other investments in equity securities
The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in associates and joint ventures, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is
their transaction price, unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as

follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in Note 2(u)(ii).

Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment

losses (see Note 2(k)).
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments in equity securities which do not fall into any of the above
categories are classified as available-for-sale equity securities. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception to this,
investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Dividend income from equity
securities is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set

out in Note 2(u)(ii).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(k)), the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.
Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to

purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss

on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)).

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction and equipment pending installation, and is initially recognised
at cost. Cost comprises cost of matenials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(w)).
The construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use, notwithstanding any
delays in the issue of the relevant commissioning certificates by the relevant

PRC authorities.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are

recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-

line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 5 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 20 years
Motor vehicles and other equipment - 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@)

()

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised
if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
and an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable (see Note 2(w)). Capitalised development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which

it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Amortisation of intangible assets with
finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years. Both the period and method

of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or
contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in retum
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of

whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, except for land held for
own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon
at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the

previous lessee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets are
included in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in Note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in Note 2(k).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged

to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(iv)

Receivables under finance lease

Where the Group leased out assets under finance lease, the initial
direct costs incurred on such assets are recorded as receivables
under finance lease. Finance income implicit in the lease payments
are charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the receivables for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the purchase costs of land use rights.
Land use rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Amortisation is charged to profit

or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the land use rights.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

Investments in equity securities and current and non-current
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of

the following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an

investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

()  Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

(continued)

If any

such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:

For investments in associates and joint ventures accounted
for under the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 2(e)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with Note 2(k)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with Note 2(K)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities carried at cost are not

reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

() Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables

(continued)

For trade and other receivables carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined

had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group s satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Interal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment;

= construction in progress;

- lease prepayments;

= intangible assets;

= other non-current assets (excluding receivables); and

= investments in subsidiaries in the Company's statement of

financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is

estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that are not yet available

for use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not

there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued)
= Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in

which the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the

financial year (see Notes 2(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been assessed only

at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing

the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

Ooccurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment

of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Convertible notes

(i)

Convertible notes that contain an equity component

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would be
issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments which contain both a liability component and an

equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible notes
is measured as the present value of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at
the time of initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount
initially recognised as the liability component is recognised as the
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity

components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost.
The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the capital reserve until either the

note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with the
carrying amount of the liability component at the time of conversion,
is transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration
for the shares issued. If the note is redeemed, the capital reserve is

released directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)  Convertible notes (continued)

(i)

Other convertible notes
Convertible notes which do not contain an equity component are

accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component of the convertible
notes is measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments (see Note 2(g)). Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component is
recognised as the liability component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of the convertible note are allocated to the liability and
derivative components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability component
is recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating to the

derivative component is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured in accordance
with Note 2(g). The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated using the effective interest

method.

If the note is converted, the carrying amounts of the derivative
and liability components are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, any difference between the amount paid and the carrying

amounts of both components is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest

and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for
financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance with Note 2(t)(i), trade
and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at

cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Obligations for contributions to PRC local government defined
contribution retirement plans pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, which is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees, are recognised as an

expense in profit or loss when incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of shares granted to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial option pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the shares were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the total estimated fair value of
the shares is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the shares will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of shares that is expected to
vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of shares that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the share is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or the share

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Where the share-based payments are arranged through trust and
the Company transfers cash to the trust to enable the trustee to
buy shares of the Company on the market, the shares purchased are
treated as treasury shares of the Company and the purchase of shares
in the market by the trust has no effect on the financial statements of

the Company.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination

benefits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current
tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s)  Income tax (continued)
= in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(t)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

()  Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with

the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ty  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred

income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with Note 2(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,

revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when gas products are delivered at the
customers' premises or collected by the customer which is taken
to be the point in time when the customer has accepted the gas
products and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax and other sales taxes and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the

shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest

method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of

reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into RMB at
the applicable rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
(“PBOC") prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into RMB at the applicable
PBOC rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using applicable PBOC rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

applicable PBOC rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they

are incurred,

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or

complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)  Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

0)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

112 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies (continued):

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the

Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually

material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 FESFHEK#E)

(y)  Segment reporting (continued)
The Group is engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in
the PRC. Although the industrial gases are sold to on-site and merchant
customers, the Group's most senior executive management regularly
review their combined financial information to assess the performance and
make resource allocation decisions. Accordingly, no segment information is

presented.

Substantially all of the Group's external customers and non-current assets

are located in the PRC.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group's financial position and results of operations are sensitive to accounting
methods, assumptions and estimates that underlie the preparation of these
financial statements. The Group bases the assumptions and estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that the Group believes to be
reasonable and which form the basis for making judgements about matters that
are not readily apparent from other sources. On an on-going basis, management
evaluates its estimates. Actual results may differ from those estimates as facts,

circumstances and conditions change.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other uncertainties
affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results to
changes in condition and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies are set out in Note
2. The Group believes the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these financial

statements.
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3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

@)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly
in order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is

adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment of assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, this asset may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amounts of assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to the level of sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections

of sales revenue and amount of operating costs.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(c)  Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Group has entered into long-term gas supply contracts with on-site
customers for periods up to 30 years. The production facilities are built on
or in close proximity to the on-site customers for the supply of industrial
gases to such customers (“on-site facilities”). The Group receives fixed
annual amounts over the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts
plus variable charges based on the quantity of industrial gases supplied.

The Group also sells gas products produced from the on-site facilities to

merchant customers.

In determining whether the arrangement contains a lease, the Group has
considered the terms of the long-term gas supply contracts. Pursuant to the
terms of the long-term gas supply contracts, the on-site customers do not
have the right to operate or control physical access to the on-site facilities.
In addition, gas products produced from the on-site facilities are also sold
to merchant customers. The amounts sold to the merchant customers are
more than an insignificant amount of the total gas products produced from

the on-site facilities. Accordingly, the Group concluded that the arrangement

of long-term gas supply contracts does not contain any lease.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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4 TURNOVER
The Group is principally engaged in the production and sales of industrial gases in
the PRC. Turnover represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold,

net of value added tax.

During the year ended 3| December 2013, the Group had one customer that
individually exceeded 10% of the Group's turnover, being RMB1,094,088,000.

During the year ended 3| December 2012, the Group had two customers that
individually exceeded 10% of the Group's turover, being RMB845,123,000 and
RMB546,080,000, respectively.

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from the customers are set out in
Note 32(b).
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

5 BREBAITAE
BEHATFIEE MR, (GtA)

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARBTR

(@)  Finance (income)/costs: (@ HBOEA)/ KK :
Interest income FEHEA (25,319) (16,057)
Finance income on receivables under finance lease R ERERRE WA (1,533) (1,610)
Total interest income FBW AL (26,852) (17,667)
Foreign currency exchange gain RN (50,747) (1,294)
Gain on remeasurement of BifTAEeR AN KS
derivative financial instruments (544) -
Finance income BBHRA (78,143) (18,961)
Interest on borrowings EBSISS 520,034 314,567
Finance charges on obligations under finance lease REHERGENREER 49,849 4,030
Total interest expenses FIE X 569,883 318,597
Less: borrowing costs capitalised B BRCEREAR (188,347) (108,786)
Finance costs BISRR 381,536 209,81 |
303,393 190,850
Borrowing costs have been capitalised EFR AR A TR EE KL -
at the following rates:
Capitalised interest rate (per annum) BRERIE(EE) 2.9% -8.1% 5.0% -7.7%
YINGDE GASES GROUP COIVlPANY LIMITED
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5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued):

5

BR3¢ A1 A8 (&)
BHRAMBER R GIA) (&) -

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR
(b)  Staff costs: (b) BIMZE:

Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits e 18 TEAREH 348,631 204,450

Contributions to defined contribution E R FUR KRG B0 5R
retirement schemes 24,643 21,176
Share Allotment Scheme expenses (Note 27) BRin L% T E8IE A (FE27) 1,829 -
375,103 225,626

Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (see Note 7).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group's PRC
subsidiaries participate in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the respective local government authorities whereby the
Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at rates in the range of

10% to 22% of the eligible employees’ salaries during the year.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees'
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HKD25,000

(HKD20,000 prior to June 2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits

beyond the annual contributions described above.
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5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5  FBREEIRE(E)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) (continued): BRAFED G, GIA)(E)
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETR
(c)  Other items: () HfEE
Utilities NSE3i]
— Electricity —EE 3,113,495 2,292,962
— Steam — & 720,653 514,585
Depreciation e 505,347 348,451
Amortisation i
— Land lease premium —MEBRMNRIE 6,585 4,899
— Intangible assets —-BVEE 4,936 4254
Auditors’ remuneration ZERM 2
— Audit service A 4,963 4,647
— Non-audit services —FERRG 2,934 690
Operating lease charges: minimum lease REHEER - REHE
payment (land and buildings) HEBE(LHEER) 16,451 16,567
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE RRED
plant and equipment BEEE 166 433
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables JE IR 0 B L JE L 0B
REEE 21,840 18491
6 INCOME TAX 6 FriE%
(@)  Taxation in profit or loss @) FTABRBHOHE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTZT
Provision of PRC income tax for the year FEHBEREH 321,134 147,271
Deferred tax ELETIA (27,133) (11,427)
294,001 135,844
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6  INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FEHR@

rates

(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

(b) FERIHEREARRAENS
BRG] RS

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Profit before taxation EREiAIAIE 1,203,613 907,129
Expected PRC income tax expense 1R 25% EE MR EH
at the statutory tax rate of 25% R BERGHER 300,903 226,782
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR EMERNTGTE 4,896 6,220
Tax effect of non-taxable income JEERM AT S 2 - (3,172)
Effect of tax losses REBRNTE 1,881 2,376
Differential tax rate on subsidiaries’ results P8 22 Rl A B9 2 2= 1,227 (73909)
Tax effect arising from the change MES OB BTE
in tax rate (Note (i)) GEA0)) (10,903) (18897)
Tax credit of domestic equipment BEEEXBNTERN
purchases (Note (ii)) (P EE (i) - (25423)
Tax on distributable profits of subsidiaries A BB B 2 B AT 2 R A
in the PRC (Note (iii)) BRI (PR 2 (i) ) (8,973) 20932
Tax effect in respect of share of results FIEBMERAIREE AT
of associates and joint ventures XENTBYE 4,970 935
Actual income tax expense ERMBHREY 294,001 135,844
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6  INCOME TAX (continued) 6 FEHR@E)
(b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax (b) FERIHERBERAREGENS
rates (continued) ARBNRDS R (F)
Notes: FizE

0) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the

Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the Group
sustained losses for the purposes of Hong Kong profits tax during the current

and prior years.

The provision for current PRC income tax is based on a statutory rate of
25% (2012: 25%) of the assessable profit as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, except for certain
subsidiaries of the Group, which operate in the western developing region of
the PRC are granted the preferential tax rate of 15%, pursuant to the relevant

documents issued by the state and local tax bureau of the PRC during 2013.

(i) Pursuant to relevant rules and regulations, certain subsidiaries of the Group in
the PRC obtained the approval of income tax credit for purchasing qualified
domestic equipment before 31 December 2007, all of such income tax credits

were expired by the end of 2012.

(i) Withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, is imposed
when dividends are distributed by a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate
holding company outside mainland China for earnings generated beginning on
| January 2008. Undistributed eamings generated prior to | January 2008 are

exempted from such withholding tax.
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6

INCOME TAX (continued)

©

Income tax (recoverable)/payable in the consolidated statement of

6

Fri&%i (@)

(0 AfEBERIARA(TRER), B

financial position FrEH
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
At | January RIAIE 69,859 67,450
Provision for PRC income tax for the year FEPBIMENR 321,134 147,27
PRC income tax paid BN EMEHR (281,012) (165,605)
PRC income tax refund REIPAE LR - 20,743
At 31 December KI12A31H 109,981 69,859
Representing: & -
Income tax recoverable AR B ST - (362)
Income tax payable FERT A {510 109,981 70,221
109,981 69,859
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6 INCOME TAX (continued) 6 8% (@)
(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (d R EEMBEEERERE
(i)  The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the () AHIBRIARAERHE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements are LiF,UbIE (BE)/BENAER
as follows: DUAREEIMT
Property, ~ Allowance Tax loss Profits
plantand  for doubtful carry  expected to
The Group equipment debts forwards distribute Total
(Note)
r5E BERRE  RBRER FEFER  ARAE @zt
(i)

RMB000 ~ RMB0O0  RMBO000  RMBO00  RMBO0O
AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR

Deferred tax arising from: BRBEMN T RBAEE -
At | January 2012 RW12EIAIR 2362 (3.089) (24485) 51434 26222
(Credited)/charged to profitorloss ~ RMER(GEA) /Hk (167) (2350) (29842) 2093 (11427)
At 31 December 2012 RNN2FE12A31A 2,195 (5439) (54327) 72366 14795
At | January 2013 RWBFIAIA 2,195 (5439) (54327) 72,366 14,795
Through acquisition of a subsidiary WENB AR - - (182) - (182)
Credited to profit or loss PR (3.673) (7,153) (7,334) (8973) (27,133)
At 31 December 2013 K135 124318 (1,478) (12,592) (61,843) 63,393 (12,520)
Note: Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits represent temporary 5T - AR FE AR ER I8
differences relating to the distributable profits accumulated since | BEREAEERT
January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC that are expected WEAREATELNA
to be distributed in the foreseeable future. RIGHER R B B 2008 &

IAIAREFHA S
EFEEEN GRS E
g o
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6 INCOME TAX (continued)

(d)

(e)

Fri&%i (@)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) d BIECHEREEREEE)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: (iy AGHHBIRRRNAEHE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Net deferred tax asset recognised RE B R PHER
in the statement of financial position BETIEEEFRE 87,765 59,766
Net deferred tax liability recognised R B SR PR
in the statement of financial position BERIER EFE (75,245) (74,561)
12,520 (14,795)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (e) REREELEHEEE

At 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating to the distributable
profits accumulated since | January 2008 of the Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC, that are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable future,
amounted to approximately RMB3,795,249,000 (2012: RMB2,470,532,000).
Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on distribution of these retained earnings as the Group
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

R2013F 128318 XEEEH
B Fff /8 2 A 42 7] 78 5L A9 R 2R 7 HR
TFHIRMBE2008F | AIBER
SRR RM BN ER
#) B A R #3,795249,00070.(2012
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7  DIRECTORS REMUNERATION 7 EEHH
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong BEEALNIMERE 6| KREBENESSH
Companies Ordinance are as follows: BEEBE25mT :
2013
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
R 3754 RIKER

e  HtEN  BREL  SERX st
RMBO00 ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMT:R

Executive directors HITEE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun - [,154 5,560 - 6,714
Zhao Xiangti HEE - 807 - 53 860
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt - 1,204 1,000 - 2,204
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Xu Zhao (resigned on 23 December 2013) #RFR (12013 % 12 A 23 BEHE) 265 - - - 265
Zheng Fuya g5s 3N - - - N
Wang Ching IR 258 - - - 258
He Yuanping (appointed fa BB (R

on 23 December 2013) W35 12ABEZMA) - - - - -
Total @t 835 3,165 6,560 53 10613
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7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance are as follows (continued):

7 EEHFM (®)

REEBAF

RBIS 161 RRBNESH

MFE25mT (&) -

2012
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary Scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Fe RER BAREN
we  HEEN  BERL  HEER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
Executive directors HITEE
Zhongguo Sun Zhongguo Sun = 1,030 4,000 = 5030
Zhao Xiangti HEE - 807 - 47 854
Trevor Raymond Strutt Trevor Raymond Strutt = 1215 1,000 = 2215
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Xu Zhao G mn - - - m
Zheng Fuya g5s 04 - - - 04
Wang Ching IR 212 - - - 202
Total CH) 708 3052 5000 47 8,807
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8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8
Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, two (2012: two) are directors
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in

respect of the other three (2012: three) individuals are as follows:

%
#
i

BEFMAL
TERRFMALTREME(2012F : @
JREE  HEMRMF7HHE - &
ZEQONF ZR)ATHFTHEE
T

2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR

Salaries and other emoluments e REAMET 3,972 3925
Discretionary bonuses MIBIEAL 3,420 —
Share Allotment Scheme DB IR 485 _
Retirement scheme contributions RIREFFFEIHERR 169 85

8,046 4010

The emoluments of the three (2012: three) individuals with the highest emoluments

are within the following bands:

%=

£2012F  ZR)RBHMALH

EMN T THNEE

Number of individuals

N |
2013 2012
HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,000,00 | 77T & 2,000,000 A 7T
(RMB786,001 to RMBI,572,000) (AR¥786001 TE
ARE1,572,0007T) - 3
HKD2,000,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,000,001 77T 2 3,000,000 % 7T
(RMBI,572,00to RMB2,359,000) (AR¥ 1,572,001 T
AR¥ 2,359,000 ) - -
HKD3,000,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,000,001 77T Z 4,000,000 A 7T
(RMB2,359,001 to RMB3,145,000) (AR¥2359,001 T
ARH3,1450007T) 2 -
HKD4,000,001 to HKDS5,000,000 4,000,001 7T Z 5,000,000 % T
(RMB3,145,001 to RMB3,931,000) (AR¥3,145001 T
AR#3,931,0007T) | -
3 3

DE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
includes a loss of RMB75,306,000 (2012: RMB93,540,000) which has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

@

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamnings per share is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of RMB907,896,000
(2012: RMB770,117,000) and the weighted average number of shares of
1,806,830,000 issued and fully paid ordinary shares (2012: 1,806,830,000

ordinary shares) during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB909,421,000 (2012: RMB770,117,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,814,899,211 shares (2012: 1,806,830,000

ordinary shares), calculated as follows:

x

ARERFAARGERNE

AREERREAREEHAERRE
ERADAIMBREBRNERAA
R #75306000L(202F: A R ¥
93,540,000 7T ) °

BRER
@) BREXEN

BREARBFIRRAAAL A
BREZBEAEBGHNEBAR
#907,896,000L(2012F : A
R #770,1170007C )+ U &k &F
NEBTMATMELH IR
% 1,806,830,000 0% (2012 4 :
1,806,830,000 & AR ) 5T & °

SREEER
SREBRARKRARALA
REEREABGREARE
909,421,0007C(2012F : AR ¥
770,117,0007C) + AR hiiEF19E
BB 1,814,899,211 B (20124 ¢
1,806,830,000 & BAX)TEMT :
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 10 BRENE
(b)  Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) BREBRAN(E)
(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company () ZARAIEEBRERFEAR
(diluted) EFE(EE)
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARETR

Profit attributable to ordinary LaRER A ARG
equity shareholders 907,896 770,117
After tax effect of fair value gain REZ LA BEED N (HE)
on the warrants (304) =
After tax effect of expenses recognised R ETERAER (F1R)
on the Share Allotment Scheme 1,829 —
Profit attributable to ordinary Lk Eanra ARGNE(EE)
equity shareholders (diluted) 909,421 770,117
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) () ERBINEFHHRE (EE)
2013 2012
Weighted average number of ordinary K12 A3 BEBBRIMETHEE
shares at 31 December 1,806,830,000 1,806,830,000
Effect of exercise of warrants RREETETE 1,505,923 -
Effect of Share Allotment Scheme (Note 27) B {n id % &+ 21/ 52 2 (B 3F 27) 6,563,288 -
Weighted average number of ordinary K12 A3 BE@ g
shares (diluted) at 3| December FHYE (8E) 1,814,899,211 1806,830,000
(i) The effect of the convertible notes was not included in the calculation (iy BZE213FNA3BILEF
of diluted earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive for the B AEREFTEEEE
year ended 31 December 201 3. & AkEAEsRES
BB ABRETERES
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1l 9% BERRKRE

The Group
BN L
Motor
vehicles
Plant and and other
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total
RER
FE BERERE HtRAE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AR%TR AR¥TR
Costs: Yo7
At | January 2012 R2012F1A18 278,575 5,470,527 140,498 5,889,600
Additions 1 532 163,149 31312 194993
Transferred from construction in progress ~ FI{EE TI28 A 100,088 948,197 - 1,048,285
Disposal HE = (6,384) (2,100) (8,484)
At 31 December 2012 R2012% 124318 379,195 6,575,489 169,710 7,124,394
At | January 2013 R2013F 1 AIH 379,195 6,575,489 169,710 7,124,394
Additions 2 127,143 91,880 30,813 249,836
Transferred from construction in progress ~ FR7EfR TH28 A 235,761 3,452,684 2,661 3,691,106
Through acquisition of a subsidiary WEEH B AR - - 741 741
Disposal HE (681) (2,396) (1,871) (4,948)
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A318 741,418 10,117,657 202,054 11,061,129
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 1l Y% BERSRE®E)

The Group (continued)
r&E (&)

Motor

vehicles

Plant and and other
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment Total

RER
EE HMERHRE HtR#E At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TR

Accumulated depreciation and Rt ERBELEA -

impairment losses:
At | January 2012 R2012F 1 A1 H (67324)  (709,807) (36292)  (813423)
Charge for the year REFHRITE (13701)  (309,323) (25427)  (348451)
Written back on disposal R ERER - 2,365 1,873 4238
At 31 December 2012 R2012F 12 A31 (81,025)  (1,016,765) (59,846)  (1,157,636)
At | January 2013 201351 A1 H (81,025)  (1,016,765) (59.846)  (1,157,636)
Through acquisition of a subsidiary WEEH B AR - - (59) (59)
Charge for the year AEHRITE (21,623)  (454,612) (29,112)  (505,347)
Written back on disposal PO E B o] 3 566 1,659 2,241
At 3| December 2013 R2013F 124318 (102,632) (1,470,811) (87,358)  (1,660,801)
Carrying amounts: KEEE
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 1231 A 638,786 8,646,846 114696 9,400,328
At 31 December 2012 20126 12 A31 A 298,170 5558724 109,864  5966,758
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(@)

NE - BERRE @)

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly located in the PRC. () AEENE BERREEIEREF
o
At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s borrowings and bills payable (b) M20I13F 128318 EAEER
were secured by the Group's plant and machinery with carrying amount of A B #2061,090,000 7T (20124 :
RMB2,06 1,090,000 (2012: RMB ,666,884,000). AR 1,666,884,0007T ) & 5 5= A
BECRAEERROE TETA
RENREELR -
Certain of the Group's leased plant and machinery are considered as being (@) AEEEMANETREREEHER
held under finance lease. Net book value of plant and machinery held under ANRERERFAEE - WEER
finance lease was as follows: EARANME LSRN REE
EENOF :
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETR
Carrying amount of plant and machinery DR ERERARAORmE R
held under finance lease HEREER 1,185,924 154,779
The Group has entered into long-term gas supply agreements with certain d) AEKEEETEFEIIRIREMR
customers for periods up to 30 years. Certain of the Group's buildings % REHBANE - A&
are located on land leased from these customers. Accordingly, building BEEFERMRMELETFRHEAL
ownership certificate is not obtained in respect of such buildings. The TH# e At L ERE B AR
carrying amount of such buildings amounted to RMB249,677,000 at 31 EREEMARES - R0I3ENA
December 2013 (2012: RMBI55,250,000). 3R FRFEREEERAR
#249,6770007C(2012% + AR
155,250,000 7) ©
At 31 December 2013, the Group was in the process of applying for the (e) R213F12A3I8  AKEEE

ownership certificate for certain buildings with an aggregate carrying amount
of RMB182,587,000 (2012: RMB18,051,000). The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy

and use of the above mentioned buildings.

PEFEEMERENETEENR
HEE A R AR 182587000
L(20124 : A K #18,051,000
L) ARAEERR  A5ER
BAERBRERRERN LA
BE -
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Il PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(f) At 31 December 2013, impairment losses were recognised in respect of the

non-current assets of the Group's subsidiary, Zhangjiagang Yingde Gases Co.,,

Ltd. (“Zhangjiagang Yingde"), as follows:

I % BERRE®E
() R2013FNA3A BEHERE
BERBERLAR(RRERAE])
FRBEERROREBENT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTRE ARETR

Property, plant and equipment E RS 78,085 78,085
Construction in progress ERrIRE 92,170 92,170
Intangible assets B AE 8,751 8,751
179,006 179,006

Zhangjiagang Yingde was engaged in the business of producing fluorine

related gas products. The production plant of Zhangjiagang Yingde was

temporarily closed down in 2010 since it did not have the required technical

know-how for commercial production of fluorine related gas products. To

date, the Group has no plan to reactivate Zhangjiagang Yingde's production

in the foreseeable future.

%%%E@ﬁﬁWEFﬁﬁm@%

2 20105F - HRRRXEBRER
ﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ&m
IERETREEE  RRER
EMEERT AN - HEBA -
AEBEEAERNRIL A ER

ERFERENEE -
[2  CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 2 HEEIR
The Group

A5
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETR
At | January RIAIB 3,793,763 992,681
Additions 2m 2,397,751 3,849,367
Through acquisition of a subsidiary )= NS 50,705 -
Transferred to property, plant and equipment BAYE  BEREE (3,691,106) (1,048,285)

At 31 December

RI12A31H

2,551,113 3,793,763

DE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

At 31 December 2013, certain equipment included in construction in progress
were held under finance lease. The lease term is 3 years, and at the end of the
lease term the Group has the option to purchase the leased equipment at a
price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. Net book value of construction in
progress held under finance lease as at 3|1 December 2013 was RMB333,916,000
(2012: RMB406,570,000).

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's borrowings were secured by the
Group's construction in progress with carrying amount of RMB242,805,000 (2012:
RMB524,675,000).

LEASE PREPAYMENTS
Lease prepayments comprise interests in leasehold land held for own use under

operating leases located in the PRC as follows:

12

FEIRE)

RNBFNAIA EEIRFE
THREZBEREAUBERESFAH
B ZHERRAIF  EHEDME
AREZAUGEERERERAEN
EEE R0I3FNAIR: £ 1
ITRPHMRERAERSREEEEAA
R %3339160007C(2012F : A R %
406,570,000 7T ) °

R13FNA3IAE EAEEAA
K #242,805,0007C(20126F : A K %
524,675,000 ) WERTIEEHAKEE
REVETREREER -

HERNMRE
HERNFERRLEEERTRHIES
FMERRAE T s - 2507 ¢

The Group
A%
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Land use rights held under long term leases REBEETHANLIERE 317,638 311,331

The land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the operating lease

periods of 50 years.

At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's borrowings and obligations under
finance lease were secured by the Group's land use rights with the carrying amount
of RMB 106,668,000 (2012: RMB45,069,000).

TiEREROFEEHERAUNER
EEH o

RB3FNAIAE EAEEAA
R #106,6680007T(2012F : A K %
45,069,0007T ) ) L3 (F AEE A KB
EENETNREEER EERR -
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14  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEEE
The Group
rEE
Know-how Software Total
BEERI g0 gt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR AR%®Txn

Cost: A
At | January 2012 R2012FIAIA 74,407 1311 75718
Additions 1 m - 1,956 1,956
At 3| December 2012 R2012F 128318 74407 3267 77,674
At | January 2013 R2013F1A18 74,407 3,267 77,674
Additions iyl 1,600 585 2,185
At 3| December 2013 R2013F 12431 H 76,007 3,852 79,859
Accumulated amortisation B BB EEA

and impairment losses:
At | January 2012 R20REIAIR (13953) (202) (14,155)
Charge for the year AEHH (3982) 272) (4,254)
At 3| December 2012 K202 124318 (17,935) (474) (18,409)
At | January 2013 R20I13FI AR (17,935) (474) (18,409)
Charge for the year REH (4,565) (371 (4,936)
At 3| December 2013 R2013F12831R (22,500) (845) (23,345)
Carrying amounts: KREEE
At 31 December 2013 R20I13F 12731 B 53,507 3,007 56,514
At 31 December 2012 R201F 12A31H 56,472 2793 59,265
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I5 RECEIVABLES UNDER FINANCE LEASE 15 EUWREHER
The gross investment and present value of receivables relating to future minimum BEATHBENRERERZIAKRE
lease payments under non-cancellable finance lease agreement or arrangement MEMEMTH  BRRKEHRENK
accounted for as finance lease are as follows: HENBEESBNERKEREZD
JUNE
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
Present Present
value of the value of the
minimum minimum
lease Gross lease Gross
payments  investment payments  Investment
REHE REHE

NRAE arE [RHE iR
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMBO000  RMB00O
ARBTRE ARMTR ARETT ARBTR

Within | year —ER 2,117 2,245 2,117 2,245
After | year but within 2 years —FREMFEA 1,898 2,245 1,898 2,245
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREREA 4,603 6,734 4603 6,734
After 5 years kiR 5,835 14,160 6,547 16,405
12,336 23,139 13,048 25384
Total G 14,453 25,384 15,165 27,629
Less: total future interest income R R BIA LT (10,931) (12,464)
Present value of lease receivables HERYGRRE 14,453 15,165
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16  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 6 HELRWER
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT
Investments in subsidiaries RITB A RMIRE
— unlisted shares, at cost — kLM - BREAE 1,044,169 1,044,169
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note) N SENG BRI S 3,698,817 2,966,864

4,742,986 4,011,033

Note: The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed

term of repayment.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. All the subsidiaries are unlisted

companies and the class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Bt - RIEARRIEAEER  EEEE
B %H\Hﬂ[fﬁf’

uTW%ﬁQ%muiuﬂmH%K

BRess EEJABABEEY
QWWEAE*%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ#tﬁﬁ
A TR ATER -

Ownership

Place of interest held by

incorporation/ Issued and fully PR Ll
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activities

EMAL B#TA ARF MWERF
NAEH B 3L B BREF oL BE IEXH
Yingde Gases Investment Limited BVI USD14,700 100% - Investment holding
BERERBREABRAA RERIES 14,700 % 7T RERK
Yingde Gases (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD 154,234,275 - 100%  Investment holding

Company Limited
BREREEABRAT] B 154234275 B 7L RERR
Yingde Investment (Shanghai) Co, Ltd. PRC UsSD 148,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BRRA(LE)ERAA P E 148,000,000 RERR
Anyang Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD62,500,000 - 100%  Production and sales
ZHRERBARAA i 62,500,000 % 7T of industrial gases
HERHEIRRAR

Baotou Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd, PRC RMB520,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
AEREREERAR i AR 520,000,000 7T of industrial gases

TERBETRRE
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

l6 SR 2 R Ay AR (4

e

Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully FERESLA
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activities
B B#TA ARF MWERAF
NEAEH FR Lo B BREF tELc] BE IEXHK
Hancheng Yingda Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD26,400,000 = 100%  Production and sales
BHEERBERAR f 26,400,000 7T of industrial gases
HERHEETERE
Hanzhong Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC USD33,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
EhRERBERAR i 33,000,000 7T of industrial gases
HERHEETERE
Hebei Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB282,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
At BEREBER AT g AR 282,000,000 70 of industrial gases
HERHBETERE
Huaf'an Yingda Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB64,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
ELZBERBAR AT Sl ARHE 64,000,000 70 of industrial gases
HERHEIRRR
Hunan Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB246,000,000 - 100%  Production and sales
HERERRERAT il AREE 246,000,000 7T of industrial gases
EERAETERE
Laiwu Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD10,049,964 - 100%  Production and sales
RERERBARAT L 10,049,964 = 7C of industrial gases
LTERHETERE
Rizhao Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB219,400,000 = 100%  Production and sales
BREERBERAR f AR 219,400,000 70 of industrial gases
HERHEETERE
Shaanxi Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC RMB 10,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
REREREBERAA i AR 110,000,0007C of industrial gases

HTERHETIRRAR
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INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) l6 HELQBMNES(E)
Ownership
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Issued and fully FERESLA
Name of company establishment paid up capital Company Subsidiary  Principal activities
B B#TA ARF MWERAF
NEAEH FR Lo B BREF tELc] BE IEXHK
Tianjin Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB60,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
RERERBERAT f AR 60,000,000 7C of industrial gases
HERHEETERE
Zhangjiagang Yingding Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD60,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
KR EREREERAR i 60,000,000 7T of industrial gases
HERHEETERE
Zhuhai Yingde Gases Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB260,000,000 = 100%  Production and sales
KERERBERAR i AR 260,000,000 70 of industrial gases
HERHBETERE
Karamay Yingde Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD33,200,000 - 100%  Under construction
RAEKREREBERA P E 332000007 ie3
Shijiazhuang Yingding Gases Co, Ltd. PRC USD42,369,741 = 100%  Under construction
AFEBRRBERAA P E 42369741 £ 7T e

GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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16  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) l6 HEQBMNERSE)
TRIRTASEFEFERREER
MRBARIES - BEEERNIRH 2

AR BE EBLmT -

The following table lists out the information relating to the subsidiaries of the
Group which have non-controlling interests (NCI). The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TR
Current assets MENBE 214,457 190,692
Non-current assets ERBDEE 405,894 289,665
Current liabilities mBERE (214,122) (265264)
Non-current liabilities L EIN=R (32,250) =
Net assets BEFE 373,979 215093
Carrying amount of NC| FERRRERRE 105,089 61,172
Revenue WA 86,815 90,907
Profit/(loss) for the year REME,/(E58) 9,346 (5,149)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) AW/ (BB BE 9,346 (5,149)
Profit allocated to NCI DEEIFERBRFIE 1,716 1,168
Dividend paid to NCI XA SRR AR R AR B - -
Cash inflows from operating activities REFHHREMA 23,971 8,048
Cash outflows from investing activities REEERERM (119,891) (5,670)
Cash inflows from financing activities RMETBREMA 47,038 94,332
17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 17 REEDFMNER
The Group
A%
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR
Share of net assets BIEFEE 684,830 706,155
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17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17 REEL E’Wém &)
The following list contains the particulars of associates, all of which are unlisted AEBKME AR AEERBI NI
corporate entities and established in the PRC: MR - FE2NMT
Place of Particulars of The Group’s
incorporation issued and effective
Name of associate and operation paid up capital interest  Principal activities
BIR ERITHNMRE A&
BERRER ES 3k AR BRERE TEER
RMB’000
AR® TR
Anyang Zhongying Fertilizer Co., Ltd. PRC 490,000 37%  Production and sale of
(“Anyang Zhongying") chemical products
ZERREEERAR(ZGRRE]) TE REMEELCTIER
Gansu Hongsheng New Energy Co,, Ltd.  PRC 666,670 45%  Under construction of
(“Gansu Hongsheng™) chemical plant
HREAMERERAA I ER(CTR
(HE@EA])
China National Air Separation PRC 50,000 30%  Manufacturing and sale of
Plant Co., Ltd. air separation equipment
PEZESREFERADA PR ENRENRENHE
Xing'an Meng Wulan Tai'an Energy PRC 392,157 49%  Under construction of
Chemical Co, Ltd. (“Wulan Tai'an”) coal chemical plant
B BSHRZERIET hE ERRC TR
BRETAR(SHRZ])
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in the BN TR R AS
consolidated financial statements. HE o
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17

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of Gansu Hongsheng, the Group’s material

associate, which is accounted for using the equity method, is as follows:

REEA

AR R (&)

REEDLTENAREERHZ A7

HBELANIEE

S#amT

Gansu Hongsheng

HRER
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETRL
Gross amounts of the associate’s BENEHARE

Current assets REEE 658,563 657,858
Non-current assets ERBEE 11,568 [1,567
Current liabilities Vi IB=R (758) (742)
Equity g 669,373 668,683
Revenue WA - =
Profit for the year AFF) 690 1,476
Total comprehensive income for the year AEGFEWRETRE 690 1,476
Dividend received from the associate REEE R A BURRE - -

Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the associate HASERBE N ENERRD
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate BERRIEEFRER 669,373 668,683
Group's effective interest AEERENE 45% 45%
Group's share of net assets of the associate AEEEBENREE R 301,218 300,907
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements & FFEI SRR P ERE £ %8 301,218 300,907

The summerised financial information, in aggregate of individually immaterial

associates is as follows:

(EEIRNEPN:

LARMBESAERE

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETR
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial (BRI EREE R RN A G
associates in the consolidated financial statements ABRR KR RE € FEE 383,612 405,248
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of AEBEBE QT
those associates’ AR
Loss for the year AEER 18,720 4,123
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEFEER 18,720 4,123
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I8  INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 18 REERTNER
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR
Share of net assets BIGFEE 223,550 38,505
Details of the Group's interest in the joint ventures, which is accounted for using REFRAL N AN ERRERELA
the equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows: SHERRK  SEBEEYWT -
Place of Particulars of The Group’s
Name of incorporation issued and effective
joint ventures and operation paid up capital interest  Principal activities
ELL B ERTNHZ AEE FEXH
#8 REHH BXRE RMER
UsD’000
Enfr
Shandong Bositeng Chunye Co, Ltd. PRC 47,025 40%  Under construction of
(“Shandong Bositeng”) chemical plant
WREBERERERAA e ERIEIH
(MR BEHE )
Cangzhou Xuyang Chemical Co., Ltd. PRC 83,683 56% Under construction of
(“Cangzhou Xuyang") (Note (i)) chemical plant
BMBS{IERAA P R IR

(TRMBR 1) (HIEE (7))
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I8

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Notes:

(i) In 2012, the Group signed an agreement with Cangzhou Xuyang and its sole
shareholder Xuyang Holding Co., Ltd. for enlarging the paid-in capital of Cangzhou
Xuyang. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group shall contribute USD84,896,000 for
56% equity interest in Cangzhou Xuyang, of which USD16,979,000 (equivalent to
RMB106,763,000) was injected during the year ended 31 December 201 3.

(i) In March 2013, the Group obtained control of Panzhihua Kaiyuan Gases Co., Ltd.
(“Panzhihua Kaiyuan™) by acquiring an additional 16% equity interest in Panzhihua
Kaiyuan with a cash consideration of RMB4,864,000. As at 3| December 2013, the
Group held 65% equity interest in Panzhihua Kaiyuan.

The following summarises the consideration transferred, and the recognised

amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

(i)

IS
b
all
=
=
T

DK
St

012F « AREBEEANBEGREE—
BB R A RIR] TIEE R
& BEREAT - AEEEREM
B I5 X & 84,896,0005 7T AER 558 MM
TB B 56%HE % & =2013F 12 A3
HILEE  BiE& 169790003 7T (48
ERARE 106,7630007T) ©

R2013F38  ZEBUBRSHEA
R 4864,000 T TERIER TR
BERDA([ZRIEFT])BEIN 6%
FORRHE - IETRESIEHIME < 120134
RA3IE AEBEFEEERIEFAT
65% H)RER ©

YNUEBRBEARGHNEEEARER
AT

PG AHREERAR

RMB’000

AR®T R

Property, plant and equipment mE - BB RERE 682
Construction in progress FETRE 50,705
Deferred tax assets EXEHIREE 182
Prepayments and receivables AN R HRIE 12,663
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHeEEY 10,093
Bank and other loans AT REMER (44,386)
Payables JERIE (400)
Total net identifiable assets AR R A EMRET 29,539
Consideration transferred — cash EEUE-HE 4,864
Fair value of 6% of total net identifiable assets ERAIHRFEELT %MD R EE 4,726
Goodwil Bk 138
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I8 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a

18 REERTANESR(E)
BRREMBARNRELAEEEY

subsidiary is as follows: MAFEATINT
RMB’000
AR®FR
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EGNRERREEEY 10,093
Cash consideration ReHE (4,864)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents REeRREFEBMRAFE 5229
19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HitIFRBEE
The Group
AR B

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETE

Prepayment for property, plant and equipment

NE - BELRBNLE

and land use right EREmENR 765,571 914,730
Value-added tax recoverable AR e AR 156,702 154,328
Loan to a joint venture AEEARME LA - 21,070
Other investment in equity securities B RAEFRE 24,727 21,127

947,000 [,I11,255
The loan to a joint venture in 2012 is unsecured, bearing interest at 8.32% per WREREERAEETBEREKA -

annum and repayable during 2014 to 2017. During 2013, the Group obtained the

control of the joint venture.

DE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ERESEBERRADF

LA 7 R 8.32% T B 7R 2014 F = 2017
FREE - R2013F - REBREBZA
BN AR IR o
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20 INVENTORIES 20 #E
The Group
r5E
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB000
AR®TR ARBTR
Raw materials and consumables R B RIEE S FE MR 28912 39,381
Finished goods R 39,650 21,637
68,562 61,018
21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 FEWERR R E oW FE
The Group The Company
XEH b

2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB'000  RMBO000  RMB000  RMB0OO
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETRT
Trade receivables FE W BRK 950,014 623,906 - .
Bills receivable ERER 292,339 204,174 - —
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIEERE (60,839) (38,999) - -
1,181,514 789,081 - -

Deposits and other receivables e REMERIE
— an associate —BERA 46,193 74,193 - —
— third parties - =v1 564,739 456,393 1,097 1,251
1,792,446 1319667 1,097 1,251

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within
one year. Credit terms may be granted to customers, depending on the credit

assessment carried out by the management on an individual basis.

Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and is repayable within 6

months.

TP A e R ARk % L A B MR A
—FRKE- EREEREHENTP
FERE SR - RTAERNEES -

JEWH S N R FBEREEE - 28 R
P68 A REIH -
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21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group's trade receivables with total carrying
amount of RMB31,140,000 (2012: RMB76,050,000) were pledged to secure the
Group's borrowing amounting to RMB355,466,000 (2012: RMB60,000,000).

(@)  Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables and bills
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the ageing analysis as of

the year end date:

21 FEURERN R H ftn PR W R IE ()
R213F1NA3IA A5SBREEE
B AR 311400000 (2012F : AR
76,050,000 7T ) W E R R ERAKE
A R #355,466,000T(2012F : AR
60,000,000 7T ) B fE FRAEHE 1R

@) HRIM
FENBR T I EL A R SRR B R AT
S B R % B U R 4R (H PR R R 2
#HE) REERRRI 250

T
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETE

Neither past due nor impaired PARBE A FERE 852,887 579,333
Less than | month past due BENEA—EA 80,955 66,521
| to 3 months past due BH—E={EA 84,259 96,693

More than 3 months but less than BEA=Z1+ A
|2 months past due 163,413 46,534
Amounts past due kil 328,627 209,748
1,181,514 789,081

The credit terms for trade receivables are generally 30 to 45 days. The bills
receivable are normally due within 180 days from the date of issuing. Further

details on the Group's credit policy are set out in Note 32(b).

DE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
EREEEAERAQ A

BREREEH-—RRBIELS
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21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group s satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against

trade and bills receivables directly (see Note 2(k)(i)).

g
(b)

R H At FE WK IR ()
JE W R R I FE L R 4B Y L (B
FEIUR X S I R 0 R B S R 5T
ANEER - RIFAEERABKE K
BRI MR - ERERT - &
BEEESEREPRELRTRER
ZBR(2RMFE200) °

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is as FIREFEREEHESH 20T -
follows:
The Group
r5E

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETR
At | January RIAIH 38,999 20,508
Impairment loss recognised HRNBEER 25,563 18491
Write-back of impairment loss REEEED (3,723) =
At 31 December RI12A31H 60,839 38,999

During the year ended 3| December 2013, trade receivables of the Group,
related to certain customers that were in financial difficulty and debt
disputes, amounting to RMB21,840,000 was determined to be impaired
(2012: RMB18,491,000).

Trade and bills receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to

a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

BZEWBFENAINALEFE A
EEMELTER A RIERHRL
A AR %21,840,000 7C(2012 F
AR 18,491,0007C ) B B % N &
AR ERAURE B ERE -

BERE E b N R E B R K
RERREERRBEROEFE -
BURPHMILRAERNZTANE
o
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21  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21
(b)  Impairment of trade and bills receivables (continued)
Trade and bills receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable,

22  PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 22
At 31 December 2013, certain bank deposits were pledged to secure credit and

loan facilities granted to the Group.

B U B R 2 L 4t B RO ()

(b) RBRERRRERRENREER
ELBHER N FRRENEKE
RRERRES RS NEARER
RIFMBECENOBLRP - RIE
NEESR  EEERRMNEREE
ETFEERE(C RRBEHRERS
REHZRRE - R ZEHRE
RGOSR

EIRFERITER
MN2013FE12A318 &
AASEMNERE

EFRAFRE
ERERBETEAT

ERIT °
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 BHEREESZEY
The Group The Company
31 KD

2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR%®TR ARETRT
Cash at bank and in hand FOERERE 342,546 846,600 14,327 4987

The Group's cash and bank balances in the PRC included RMB264,723,000 at 31
December 2013 (2012: RMB701,924,000). RMB is not a freely convertible currency
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction

imposed by the PRC government.

DE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ERESEBERRADF

AEBR03FNANBEFBENR
S RFITEABE AR 264723,0007T
(2012F : AR¥T01,92400070) © AR
I TR EHERNEYE  BERE
o B 78 X R B RS e A0 90 EE A
IR o
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24 BORROWINGS 24 fER
(@)  The borrowings comprise: @ EREE:
The Group The Company
AEHE ARH
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT AR%¥TR ARETR
Short-term borrowings RHEEX 100,000 905,358 - —
Current portion of REERNENERE D
long-term borrowings 1,094,579 2,357959 - 1,618,014
1,194,579 3263317 - 1618014
Non-current portion of REBERNRBDS
long-term borrowings 5,818,610 2,864,774 153,530 =
7,013,189 6,128,091 153,530 1,618,014
The interest rates per annum of borrowings were: ERHENRA :
The Group The Company
F%H A2
2013 2012 2013 2012
Short-term loans ST 6.0%-6.3% LIBOR+ - -
5.0% or
5.0%-7.2%
fRBERTT
BES¥VIES
+5.0%85.0%-7.2%
Long-term loans RGN LIBOR+ LIBOR+ - LIBOR+
2.75%-6.0% or 225%-6.0% or 225%-3.55%
6.08%-7.68% 6:4%-10.4% {RERERIT
BRI mBRIT BEIJ ISV
REfFENE  FXFEFE +225%-3.55%
¥275%6.0%3  +225%-60%
6.08%-7.68% 6.4%-10.4%
Medium-term notes hHRE 5.5% 5.5% - -
Senior notes BEER 8.125% - - -
Convertible notes B ES 15.29% - 15.29% -
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24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 fERE)
(@)  The borrowings comprise (continued): @) BREREE :
Interest rates comprise fixed rates and floating rates based on the London MEREEE TR R EGIRTE
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™). Emghe ([ RBARTRERFEF
& |) BRI BAIE -
(b)  The borrowings were repayable as follows: (b) MEREZHRMOT :
The Group The Company
A& ARF
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
On demand (Note) REREE (M) 274525 1618014 - 1618014
Within | year —ER 920,054 1,645,303 - -
After | year but within 2 years —FREMEA 1,065,989 661,046 153,530 —
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFR 4,618,621 2,203,728 - -
After 5 years ks 134,000 - - —
7,013,189 6,128,091 153,530 1,618,014

Certain bank loans of the Group are subject to the fulfilment of covenants

relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants the drawn down loan balances would become payable on
demand. At 3| December 2012, the Group had breached certain financial
covenants in respect of certain loans amounting to RMB1,618,014,000, of
which RMB1,060,841,000 were classified as current. Those loans had been
fully repaid in 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, none of the covenants relating to bank loans had
been breached. The amount of repayable on demand as at 31 December
are the amount entitled to be repaid on demand as requested by bank in

accordance with terms of the loan contracts.

AEBETHRAIERAETETA
RSB R 22K - M
ERNNeREE L SETHTE
FRo-MASEEREZL  AE
HEREREE - R2012F 12A
3R ASEERTEBAAR
#1,618014000 THIH A EFXNE

ToBEY  EPRXEEERT
HBEMBROMEE S AR EE
MEREEAARE 060,841,000

T B ERER2013F25

=

ME
°

EE

R2013F 128318 THEEER
RITERMBRONER - B 12
A3 B RERKEENRITER
HEREBERERATERZRRIT
zx/\1§imigﬁ°
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24

©

BORROWINGS (continued) 24 fER(E)
The borrowings were secured as follows: (0 BREMBERAOT :
The Group The Company
X&HE ARF
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTFR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Bank loans FITER
~ secured - BHR 1,487,116 3457,696 - -
— unsecured —BEM 1,729.374 1633014 - 1618014
Other loans Hih &%
— secured —BHER - 50,000 - -
— unsecured —EHR 190,500 110,000 - —
Medium-term notes IR
— unsecured — R 877,424 877,381 - -
Senior notes (Note (e)) BRRE(ERE ()
— unsecured —EHR 2,575,245 - - -
Convertible notes and warrants AEREFMBREEGEE®N)
(Note ()
~ unsecured —BEF 153,530 - 153,530 -
7,013,189 6,128,091 153,530 1,618014
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24 BORROWINGS (continued) 24 {ER(&)
(d)  The carrying value of assets secured for borrowings were as follows: (d REREFNEERAEEDT
The Group The Company
31 K07
2013 2012 2013 2012

RMB'000 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'0O00  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR

Property, plant and equipment WE - HERE 2,061,090 1,666,884 - =
Construction in progress ERIRE 242,805 524,675 - -
Lease prepayments MERMNRE 106,668 45,069 - -
Trade and other receivables S ARk % LA P Lk O 31,140 76,050 - -
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER - 154,009 - 34,009
2,441,703 2,466,687 - 34,009
(e)  Senior notes: () BERE:
One subsidiary of the Company issued senior notes of aggregate amount AATI—MBATIN20I3E4 A5
of USD425,000,000 in April 2013 (the “Senior notes”), which will be due in 47 T 488 425,000,000 7T K B 4L
2018, ZR(EAER))  BLELER
M 20185 ZIH -
The Senior notes bear interest at 8.125% per annum, payable semi-annually BAREFERLINY% BFF
in arrears. SR—ik o
As at 31 December 2013, the Senior notes were guaranteed by the R2013ENA3IR BLELE
Company and 5 subsidiaries of the Company registered in Hong Kong and BRARNTIRSEREENERRE
the BVI. The guarantee will be released upon the full and final payments of TEEFM MM B A TR E
the Senior notes, - EHEREABRAATRE

BEXNELBERBRER -
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24

BORROWINGS (continued)

()

Senior notes (continued):

The Senior notes are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
limitations on indebtedness and certain transactions of the Group, as are
commonly found in issue of corporate bonds. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31 December 2013, none of the

covenants relating to the Senior notes had been breached.

Convertible notes and warrants:

On 24 November 2013, the Company and China Development Bank
International Investment Ltd. (“CDB International”) entered into an
investment agreement whereby the Company agreed to issue and
CDB International agreed to subscribe for (i) the principal amount of
USD25,000,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB153,312,500) 8% coupon
convertible notes, which could convert to approximately 22,024,148 shares,
due 2015; and (ii) at nil consideration, 18,953,853 warrants exercisable
to purchase ordinary shares of USD0.00000! each in the capital of the
Company. By end of 31 December 2013, the above convertible notes and

warrants have been issued.

24

fa ™} ()

() BARE(A):
BAERBRERAKEABITHAS
BIERRE TR 5 0B H 12 5%E
HARERERTRAGEHRER
f) o AN EITE BB H IS LR ER )
BREBR - R2013F128318
rEEVEERIMNEELZES
MR -

() FAERESNIRES:

013F 11 A248 " AAREHBER
R EERAR (TR T
V-EREWZ  BRALERE
EARBERERAE(REXE
£25000000E€ T(HHE RN AR
153,312,5007C ) 2 2015 F 5| B8 |
] 88 % R 77 (49 7] 8 1% 22,024,148
BR) ¢ R (i) B R 18,953,853 17
AJAT{E R MR B DA B AR A AR AR
M & % T {E0.000001 E L 2 L@
B #ZE203F 128318 kit
MERESNRRERD LET -
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25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 ENRIREMESTE
The Group The Company
rEE PN/
2013 2012 2013 2012

RMB'O00 ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMBO0O
ARBTR ARETE ARMTR ARBTR

Trade payables FERTERTX 57,272 48492 - =
Bills payable ANES 313,555 648,000 - —
Payable for property, plant and equipment  #)% « B K& & S 5B 1,192,465 1,136,670 - -
Amounts due to associates EATEE R RIFUR 270,000 450,000 - -
Amount due to a joint venture SRR NGIE S 93,528 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries =G - - 2,556,448 16,744
Amount due to a shareholder FERAR R 5RIE - 8,050 - -
Advance from a non-controlling R IR RARR

shareholder through acquisition fEARE 3,762 = - =
Accrued expenses and other payables RRRER KEMERMN K 246,06 149278 7,738 27,603
Derivative financial instruments TESRMIA 5,053 8,221 5,053 822l

2,181,696 2448711 2,569,239 52,568
All the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year or FIEREMNERREMEMNRIBEEN—
repayable on demand. imgﬁgg;}zf@j@ o
The amounts due to associates, joint ventures, subsidiaries and a non-controlling EfMEENT 5208 [MBATM
shareholder are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of repayable. EERREFEAREEE . 2EREE
TR o
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26

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 26 BMEHERE
At 31 December 2013, the Group had obligations under finance lease repayable as R23FI12A31H AEBERENE
follows: BHEARBE2FIMT :
2013 2012
Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEEE REHE KEEE SKEEE
ARAE ARELE FRE SRELSE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TT ARBTT
Within | year —FR 257,081 266,282 37,099 65,701
After | year but within 2 years —FREMER 304,005 333,657 126,987 126,564
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRER 316,123 380,968 343,466 379,703
After 5 years hEFE 13,660 31,453 16,814 40,000
633,788 746,078 487,267 546,267
Total 3 890,869 1,012,360 524,366 611,968
Less: total future interest expenses B ARFSERERE (121,491) (87,602)
Present value of lease obligations HERRRE 890,869 524,366
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27

SHARE ALLOTMENT SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company's board resolution dated 8 July 2013 (“Adoption Date"),
the Company adopted a share allotment scheme (“‘Share Allotment Scheme™) to
recognise the contributions by certain employees and to give incentives for them
to work with commitment towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the shareholders, and to attract high caliber personnel for
further development of the Group. On the same date, the Company entered into

a trust deed with KCS Trust Limited (“Trustee™) for the Share Allotment Scheme.

In October 2013, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Share
Allotment Scheme, the Company lent loans of HKD 158,878,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB125,974,000) and allotted 22,600,000 shares to the Trustee
at an issue price of HKD7.03 per share (represents a discount of approximately
5% to the average closing price of the share for the last 30 trading days prior to
the determination of issue price). The Trustee subscribed the shares allotted on
behalf of the trust and settled the subscription amount out of the loans from the
Company accordingly. The shares allotted represent approximately |.24% of the
total issued share capital of the Company immediately upon the completion of
the allotment. The Trustee will hold the shares allotted in trust for those selected
employees of mid-and-senior-level management of the Company (“Participating

Employees”) until such shares allotted are vested.

The shares allotted held by the Trustee shall be fully vested by the Participating
Employees on the tenth anniversary of |6 September 2013 (the date of final
approval by the board of the number of shares to be allocated to the Participating
Employees) provided that the Participating Employees remain at all times after 16
September 2013 till vesting date an employee and subject to the full repayment of

the outstanding loan amounts relating to the relevant shares allotted.

The Share Allotment Scheme shall terminate on the thirteenth anniversary date of

the Adoption Date.

The Company accounts for the fair value of the shares allotted as an expense over
the ten-year period with a corresponding increase in equity. The shares allotted are
treated as treasury shares and no loan receivable from the Trustee is recognised

until vesting of the Share Allotment Scheme.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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@)

(b)

27 SHARE ALLOTMENT SCHEME (continued) 27 ROERETE(#)
The terms and conditions are as follows: @) BEREGDT :
Number of
instruments Vesting conditions
TEHE BEGRNT
Shares allotted 22,600,000 Ten years from the date of grant
i) i an] S pei ity s
Fair value of shares allotted (b) EEROGMAAEE
The fair value of services received in retum for shares allotted is measured ISR D ESRBH AL BE
by reference to the fair value of shares allotted. The estimate of the fair value RERBEROHE DL BEETE
of the shares allotted is measured based on a binomial option pricing model. o MBEROH DAL BEBB -
The contractual life of the Share Allotment Scheme is used as an input into REREEERAIIE o RHER R
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial EE N ERIEAZIEL K — 188
option pricing model. AE - BHRATENERTES
REAHETER -
Fair value of shares allotted and assumptions ~ BLER B D ABEREBRR 2013
Fair value at measurement date TEEMAREE RMB ARE& 277
Share price at measurement date At B EIAR(E RMB AR 6.43
Exercise price 1THE(E RMB ARE 492
Volatility (expressed as weighted KEE(VAZIER
average volatility used in the modelling BT B TN
under binomial option pricing model) FHREERERT) 39.95%
Option life (expressed as weighted HREER (A B
average life used in the modelling EEBEATNEFS
under binomial option pricing model) FRET) Year F 10.25
Expected dividends per share BHEREE RMB ARE& 0.15
Risk-free interest rate (based on o B | 2 (BN
Exchange Fund Notes) ESER) 2.22%
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27

28

SHARE ALLOTMENT SCHEME (continued) 27 RAERTE (&)
(b)  Fair value of shares allotted (continued) (b) EBROGNAIAEEE)
The volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on the REN R ENFE LR E R (EPA R
weighted average remaining life of the Shares Allotment Scheme), adjusted B2 L AT G ERE
for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly available &) URERBERRKEXE
information. Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes HAREBETAE - Bt B2
in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value %ﬁ’\\}ﬁﬁ"iﬂn SEtE o« TEHAER
estimate. VEBKeH AR EBENMGTE
Eigg/g
Shares allotted were granted under a service condition. This condition has B 28 AR A0 B 13 2 — TR AR A6 1 T
not been taken into account in the grant date fair value measurement of IR ZEEETER L B ERE
the services received. There were no market conditions associated with the HALBERETATUAEE - KK
Share Allotment Scheme. Bo g st 130 AR s R
SHARE CAPITAL 28 RAX
2013 2012
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
ko @A £ k&R gk
RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR ARBTL
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of USD0.000001 each BIRE(E0.000001 TR 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
lssued and fully paid EHTHAE 1,806,830,000 12 1806830000 12
Shares issued under Share Allotment Scheme Bip B gt A B RN 22,600,000 - - -
1,829,430,000 12 13806830000 12

Pursuant to the Share Allotment Scheme, the Company issued 22,600,000 ordinary
shares at HKD7.03 per share during the year (Note 27).

GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BEBAERAR

BREROEZEE  ARABRERFR
7.037 T 31T T 22,600,000 % I 8 AR (B
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29 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 fERERE
(@)  Movements in components of equity () HRARDIZEE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each REB SRS AR D E)
component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated MEBRNFANKRE 2HES G
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's HFERD o AARERS AR BH
individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the NEGMERNEHZE2I 0
year are set out below: N

Share Share Other  Accumulated

capital premium reserve losses Total

Bx  BRORE HieRE RHER ait
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB00  RMB'0O0
ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR ARMTR AR®TR

At | January 2012 R20RFIAIR 12 2983818 - (274592) 2,709,238
Total loss for the year AEERARH = = = (93,540) (93,540)
Dividends approved in respect REFEFRENRE

of the previous year - - - (234,888) (234,888)
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A318 12 2983818 = (603020) 2380810
At | January 2013 R2013F 1 A8 12 2983818 - (603,020 2,380,810
Total loss for the year AFEERES - - - (75,306) (75,306)
Dividends approved in respect REFEFRENRE

of the previous year - - - (271,025) (271,025)
Effect on Share Allotment Scheme BRIy 2 - - 1,829 - 1,829
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A318 12 2983818 1,829 (949351) 2,036,308
Details of movements of the Company's share capital are set out in Note HARNBIRAESEED 2HP0M
28. X080
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29  RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 29 fFERKRE(E)
(b)  Dividends (b) BE
() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable () AEREMNTEARBRENHR
to the year: B
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE AR®TRT

Final dividend proposed after the end of RBRERRERZD RERE AR

the reporting period of RMBO. 18 AR®0.1870(2012F : AR®O0.157T)
(2012: RMBO.15) per ordinary share HARHIR R 329,297 271,025
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period WEMRZIEE D RN RE
date has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting Ig B3 AR REH KRR A
period. Bfg-
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable (i) RAERIEREIHFA
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year: NAREFEERRE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR®TE

Final dividend in respect of the previous RAFEN#ERE X TH
financial year, approved and paid during FEERERE - SRERK
the year, of RMBO.15 (2012: RMBO. 13) AR®O0.157T
per ordinary share (2012 : AR¥0.137T) 271,025 234,888

DE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
EREEEAERAQ A
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29

RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

©

(d)

(e)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is

able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary courses of business.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company's subsidiaries in
the PRC, appropriations to the statutory reserve were made at a certain
percentage of profit after taxation determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC. The statutory reserve can
be utilised in setting off accumulated losses or increasing capital of the

subsidiaries and is non-distributable other than in liquidation.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly included the difference between the carrying value of
non-controlling interest previously acquired and the consideration paid, the
amount recognised within equity in respect of conversion of loan in prior

years, and the fair value effect recognised for Share Allotment Scheme.

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was RMB2,036,296,000
(2012: RMB2,380,798,000).

29

RERKE (&)
(0 KRDEE

REFASBEBARE  ARANR
RERABEXNERM TRR
MDA S - ERBER DR
RS REIR - ARENAE
AEEHBETENEHET

EERE
BEAL AR B EA T
GERGR - RSLAERTEE

ATRAIRRPIR RS - KERBRF
BOETAED LA REETRHME
EERBT AN BRI BRI
DB AREAR © BRBRIN - %I
BAERRDIK °

Hituf

HioREEE R RN IR
RSN HENRREENE
FARNAFEBRETNERT
BRNEE - MENEETEND

REBEFE -

AR RFEE

R2013F 128318 AIEDRT
ARAERHFEANZBEEEAA
R #2,036,2960007C(2012F = A
FR#2,380,798,0007T)
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29 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(®

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returmns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and obligations
under finance leases) plus accrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2012, was
to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital at reasonable level. In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, raised new debt financing or sell

assets to reduce debt.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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29 RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(®

Capital management (continued)

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio of the Group at 31 December 2013

29 RBERRE

‘:.'-:’

E

8) ﬁzli%*ﬁ(,%a)

Eézmzi K2013F 128318 &

and 2012 was as follows: ERARFREEALEMT
2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i ARBTR AR®TRT
Current liabilities: mBEE
Borrowings a3 24 1,194,579 3263317
Amounts due to associates eI R AR 25 270,000 450,000
Amount due to a joint venture eI & &N RIFIE 25 93,528 -
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder & BUKEE A IEIZRAR R 18 AFUE
through acquisition 25 3,762 —
Obligations under finance leases REHEAR 26 257,081 37,099
1,818,950 3750416
Non-current liabilities: FERBERE
Borrowings EE 24 5818610 2,864,774
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder BB JEIER AR R A
through acquisition 11,288 -
Obligations under finance leases MEHEGE 26 633,788 487,267
Total debt EBRAR 8,282,636 7,102,457
Add: proposed dividends m:EERE 29(b) 329,297 271,025
Less: cash and cash equivalents " ReERREEEY (342,546) (846,600)
Adjusted net debt AR ER T 8,269,387 6,526,882
Total equity etk 6,229,768 5547151
Less: proposed dividends B EERE (329,297) (271,025)
Adjusted capital FEEE S VN 5,900,471 5276,126
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio RARFEEERLE 140% 124%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to externally RAEISEM AR B A RBAT

imposed capital requirements.

INBEAR R TER B o
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30

166 Yl
B

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

@)

N

30 EXEEARS

Key management personnel remuneration @) HEEEASHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEBBEREEASTH 2k
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in Note 7 and certain M7 HENS N FARRZEN
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows: FEREMFSRENZNTET
REFMALTHRE 0T
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
Short-term employee benefits RHEERA 11,961 12,377
Post-employment benefits BEBAREA 12 85
Share Allotment Scheme expenses BROECEEEIE R 162 =
12,135 12,462
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note 5(b)). St AIETHRA (2R
#E5(b)) °
Transactions with associates and joint ventures of the Group (b) HEAEENBELEATIRESEDNTHN

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had the following

transactions with associates and joint ventures:

X%

HZE20I3F12A3IBILFEE - K
SEENTEBERARAE AT

CETE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®TR
Advances from/(to) the Group AEEEL/(BA)RE
(Repayment from)/loan to a joint venture AEAR(ER) MBARE (21,070) 21,765
(Repayment from)/advance to an associate BERF(ER) MEATER (28,000) 74,193
Repayment to/(advances from) associates BE/ (BRRBERT 180,000 (450,000)
Advances from a joint venture R RN (93,528) -
Advance from a non-controlling IR A SRR AR A TR
shareholder through acquisition (16,133) —
Sales to an associate 2N R HEEWA (89,311) -

GDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
BERKBEBEERLS
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)  Transactions with associates and joint ventures of the Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, amounts due from/(to) associates and a joint

venture:

30 EAEBAR
(b) EEXRE

(&)
IE’JE%% ARGEQRN

R5 (&)

R20I13E 128318 EY /(&

BERTRAERRMTER :

2013 2012
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
P % ARBTR AR%TR
Non-current assets FRBEE
Loan to joint ventures & &R R L RE 19 - 21,070
Trade and other receivables W B e Lt B WK IE
Amount due from an associate JIE U BS /A B 0B 21 46,193 74,193
Trade receivables from an associate B N F 2 IR K 106,791 -
Trade and other payables/other ERERREMENRE
non-current liabilities HinIEmaank
Amounts due to associates FERIB & R RIFRIA 25 (270,000) (450,000)
Amount due to a joint venture ER&%ERAIHEA 25 (93,528) =
Advance from a non-controlling BB A IR AR R
shareholder through acquisition fBARE (15,050) =
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30

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

©

Transactions with Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited (“Bubbly Brooke”),

a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Mr. Zhongguo Sun, a

director of the Company

(i)

Cash advances to Bubbly Brooke

During the year ended 3| December 2012, the Group, through a
wholly-owned subsidiary, advanced certain cash to Bubbly Brooke.
The maximum balance outstanding during 2012 was RMB73,216,000.
The amounts were bearing interest at 5% per annum and fully repaid
in 2012. This transaction also constitutes connected transaction as
defined in Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. There was no cash
advance to Bubbly Brooke during the year ended 3| December 2013.

Cash advances from Bubbly Brooke

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Bubbly Brooke advanced
certain cash to the Group. The maximum balance outstanding during
2012 was RMB66,172,000. During the year ended 31 December
2013, cash of RMB62,779,000 was advanced from Bubbly Brooke and
the Group had repaid all outstanding balance.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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BEBERARA
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EXBBRLRXS (&)

EAR QAR FEER R Bubbly Brooke
Holdings Limited([Bubbly
Brookel) Ml — & A A & &>
Zhongguo Sun MR 5

(©)

(0

[7] Bubbly Brooke f& i3 &

BE20NRFENA3BLE
B rEERBE-—REE
MEBARKETHREET
Bubbly Brooke © 20124
ZEFNRARER/ARE
732160007C © % & B A4
5% EEH B AR 2012
FREER - ZRHNB
R ETHRAE IAZTEN
BEXH - BLEWIZFI
AIBILEE  TFER
Bubbly Brooke f& 5K AT &R

1€ Bubbly Brooke f&§ AT &
BE200ENA3IBILE
[£ - Bubbly Brooke 5% TR
EETAEE 20012F
ERNEARBERAARE
66,172,0007C & 20135
RABLEEERE  A&HE
JA Bubbly Brooke f& A AR
627790007 - WEET 2
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() Transactions with Bubbly Brooke Holdings Limited (“Bubbly Brooke”),

a substantial shareholder of the Company, and Mr. Zhongguo Sun, a

director of the Company (continued)

(ify  The outstanding balances with Bubbly Brooke and Mr. Zhongguo Sun

at 31 December are as follows:

30 EXBBMAIRE (&)

(c) BEERATETERRBubbly Brooke
Holdings Limited([Bubbly
Brooke]) #l — & A & E %>
Zhongguo Sun MR 5 (&)

(i) #Bubbly Brooke
Zhongguo Sun%t 4 K12 A

3 BMEREDR
2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARETRT

Amount due to Bubbly Brooke J& 15 Bubbly Brooke 78 - 8,050
Bonus payable to Mr. Zhongguo Sun J&fJ Zhongguo Sun £ & 156 1,000

(iv)  Bubbly Brooke is 100% held by a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr.

Zhongguo Sun is one of the specified beneficiaries of the Trust.

31  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@)  Capital commitments
At 31 December 2013, the Group had capital commitments for acquisition

and construction of properties and equipment, and other investments as

(iv) Bubbly Brookefi — R 2 &
EFE(EE 1) 100%5 A
Zhongguo Sun L& BHZIER
MEEZHAZ— °

3 AERYGEEE
(@) EXREE
R2013F 128318 AEEY
ERBENBEENER REMIRE

follows: MERFEZTMT
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETR
Authorised and contracted for ERERERN 5,729,039 3,448,296
Authorised but not contracted for ERERRITH 7,997,261 3,718,074

13,726,300 7,166,370
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31  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

31 RERIBEE@E

(b)  Operating lease commitments () HEHEEAE
At 31 December 2013, the Group's total future minimum lease payments R2013F 12831 B RETA#H
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and properties, are RS HAREB ENEE L7
payable as follows: MERRREEHRERNRBEZS
T
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTRE ARETR
Within | year —FR 12,934 12,78
After | year but within 5 years —FRERFA 30,404 27929
After 5 years L& 47811 37,131
91,149 77841
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. ZERETRERERS -
(c)  Contingent liabilities () HEEHE
The Group had no material contingent liabilities at 31 December 2013 and RONERNBENAZBR AL
2012 BUEEASRERME -
At 31 December 2013, contingent liabilities of the Company were as R2013F 128318 ARFIHK
follows: BEBNT :
The Company
AR
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR
Guarantees given to banks AATREFHBATBRRAER
by the Company in respect of bank M RITR A =R

loans utilised by certain subsidiaries

1,675,005 1,345,873

170 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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31

32

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(d)

Legal contingencies

The Group is the defendant in certain lawsuit as well as the plaintiff in other
proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While the outcomes
of such contingencies, lawsuit or other proceedings cannot be estimated
at present, management believes that any resulting liabilities will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial position or operating results of the

Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to liquidity, credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal

course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

Liquidity risk
As at 31 December 2013, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMB1,472,643,000.

In 2014 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations to meet its
debt obligations as they fall due, and its ability to obtain adequate external

financing to meet its committed future capital expenditures.

31

32

RERIEBEESE

(d BEEESHE
AEKERE TEEFAPHRS -
thE B EEBH LR EMFAT
HRE - BEBARERTELY
BEE  ERFASEMFRNE
R BERERGEEAHLIENE
BRI HARE BB RE
ERBEREANAEYE o

MEEREERESMIANAAE
&
AEERAENRBESER  FER
b MEERAREERREBRR RS
BREPEL -

AEBMAENZSRBRNASERR
IR 15 AL B 10 A 75 L B IR SR AN 1B
PIEanT o

@ REBELER
AEBERWIZFIZAIAB Z R
HEGHREERDEEARE
472,643,000 7T °

RWI4FRARFE - ARER
MEE MR EBRRNAEE
REASERSFRANENER
BIEERS < B8 1 AR EESIN
BB AR RIRE AR B AR
BN
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(@)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company have carried out a detailed review of the
cash flow forecast of the Group for the twelve months ending 31 December
2014. Based on such forecast, the directors have determined that adequate
liquidity exists to finance the working capital and capital expenditure
requirements of the Group during that period. In preparing the cash flow
forecast, the directors have considered historical cash requirements of the
Group as well as other key factors, including the availability of the above-
mentioned loan finance which may impact the operations of the Group
during the next twelve-month period. The directors are of the opinion that
the assumptions and sensitivities which are included in the cash flow forecast
are reasonable. However, as with all assumptions in regard to future events,
these are subject to inherent limitations and uncertainties and some or all of

these assumptions may not be realised.

The Group has to maintain a suitable level of liquidity to finance the daily
operation, capital expenditure and repayment of borrowings. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The following tables show details the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 32 BB EREERLSBRIENAAE
INSTRUMENTS (continued) {B (&)

(@)  Liquidity risk (continued) @ RBHESER(E)

2013

More than More than

Total | year 2 years
contractual but less but less More
Carrying undiscounted Within than than than
amount cash flow  On demand | year 2 years 5 years 5 years
ARNEN
FERAS IER0E  2%HE

RAEE REAR BREXR 1R E2FR BSER SENE
RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB000
ARERTR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR ARBTx

Borrowings & 7011217 8580933 274505 1369295 1491,155  5307,983 137,975
Trade and ERERT R

other payables H AT 500R 2,159,138 2,159,138 - 2,159,138 - - -
Obligations under HEREAR

finance lease 890,869 1,012,360 - 266,282 333,657 380,968 31,453

10,061,224 11,752,431 274,525 3,794,715 1,824,812 5,688,951 169,428
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 32 BIREREERSHMIBENAAE
INSTRUMENTS (continued) {6 (&)

(@)  Liquidity risk (continued) @ RBESER(E)

2012

More than ~ More than

Total | year 2 years
contractual but less but less More
Carrying  undiscounted Within than than than
amount cash flow  On demand | year 2 years 5 years 5 years
ARAEN
Rk IFUE 2FUE

REEE REEE  BREX IFR E2FR SR SENE
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB0OOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTL ARBTR ARETL ARBTL ARETL ARETT ARETR

Borrowings & 6128091 6792591 1618014 1893903 825150 2455524 -
Trade and ERERT R

other payables ECANE 2435893 2435893 - 2435893 — — —
Obligations under ~ BEBEHE

finance lease 524366 611968 - 65,701 126564 379,703 40,000

9,088350 9840452 1618014 4395497 951,714 2835227 40,000

(b)  Credit risk and concentration risk b) FERARREESTER
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other AEERNEZEREBTERENEKE
receivables. The management has a credit policy in place and the exposures TREMEKZGIE CEEEEE
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. NEERSR  UHEEEZEEE

R\ o
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Credit risk and concentration risk (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 30 to 45 days from the date of billing. Moreover,
extended credit terms are granted to certain on-site customers depending
on the credit assessment carried out by the management on an individual

basis.

Significant amounts of revenue are derived from a limited number of on-site
customers. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. At 31 December 2013, 26% (2012: 34%) of the total
trade and bills receivables were due from the Group's five largest customers.
The Group has no significant credit risk with any of these customers since
the Group maintains stable business relationships with these large customers.
Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and are derived from revenues
earned from operations arising in the PRC. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers' financial condition and generally does not

require collateral on trade receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount

of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit

risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 21.

32
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 32
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Credit risk and concentration risk (continued)
The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the

Group to credit risk.

()  Interest rate risk
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the Group's borrowings are

disclosed in Note 24.

[t is estimated that a general increase of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease the Group's profit

after tax and retained earnings by the amount as shown below:

FHEREERERIANAAE

=16 )

b) FERRREESTERE)
AEBEYEREEMATESAEE
AR EERBRIER -

() F=EER
AEEBTNFELEZERER
MizE24 B3 -

fEETFIRGE M 00 AL - £
tAEZEETENERTARER
BEFBERRERMNERINEE
25T

The Group
rEH
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETR

Effect on profit after tax and retained earings BRIENERRERNTE

22,661 20,595

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period
and had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of

the reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign
exchange transactions involving Renminbi must take place through PBOC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange
rate adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange
quoted by the PBOC that would be subject to a managed float against an

unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of earnings outside
the PRC, are subject to the availability of foreign currency (which depends
on the foreign currency denominated earnings of the Group) or must be

arranged through the PBOC with government approval.

All the revenue-generating operations of the Group are transacted in
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on financial
assets and financial liabilities that are denominated in currencies other than
Renminbi. Depreciation or appreciation of the Renminbi against foreign
currencies can affect the Group's results. The Group did not hedge its

foreign currency exposure.

32
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

()

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the

32 UHEAREERSHIANAAE

& (&)

d) E¥ER(E)

()

SERBEE

TRHFNAEEREE AR
ARNERNEEH I
ERFECEERARRE
EMERERARE - 27

amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the

spot rate at the end of the reporting date.

BNME  BAEz2R
AAREIIR - W IAREH
RENEFERIBE o

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

HEERECAARRSIT)
2013 2012
United United
States Hong Kong States Hong Kong
Dollars Euros Dollars Dollars Euros Dollars
EYH B B e BT BT
'000 '000 '000 000 000 000
Fr Fr Fr T T T
Cashand cash equivalents  HERFEEEY 58,130 252 520 154810 2,445 2905
Borrowings ek (3,195860)  (126,966) - (2026410)  (108,284) =
Trade and other payables ~ FEfBER %
HiERZE  (125024)  (49.383) (1318)  (54024) - (1,318)
Gross exposure arising from & 2} & &P
recognised assets ELXRREE
and liabilities (3262,754)  (176,097) (798)  (1925624)  (105839) 1,587
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5% strengthening of Renminbi against the respective foreign
currencies at the respective reporting period end dates would
increase profit after tax and retained eamings by the amount shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular

interest rates, remain constant.

32

HERREERESMIANAAE

{B (&)

d) E¥ER(E)

(i)  BBEHSIT

REREMR  AREHE
B ES% G R A
ARRERNEMNEESR
FIT o ZAoMRRE A
g2 LERAE RE

xo

The Group
A&
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR

Effect on profit after tax and retained eamings R 75t 4 78 J (R & & F %

ANNN
il

ot

4B

(167,181) (96,089)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e)  Fair values

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technigue as follows:

= Level | valuations: Fair value measured using only Level |
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
..e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level I, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs

for which market data are not available.

= Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.

180 YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

B 75 R AR Y E )

32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 32
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

HHEREERERIANAAE
& (&)

(e)  Fair values (continued) () BAEBEGE)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) () BALEBHEIENETHBEE
Fz@E & (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) ArEEER(E)

The Group has performed valuation for interest rate swaps which are
categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value
of RMB5,053,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB8,221,000).
The Group has appointed a third party performing valuations for
conversion option embedded in convertible notes and warrants
which are categorised into Level 3, with the fair value of RMB815,000
and RMBI, 157,000, respectively, as at 3| December 2013. Valuation
reports with analysis of changes in fair value measurement are
prepared by the Group or a third party at each interim and annual
reporting date, and are reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. Discussion of the valuation process and results with the chief
financial officer and the audit committee is held twice a year, to

coincide with the reporting dates.

During the years ended 3| December 2012 and 2013, there were
no transfers between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

AEEYHN R BRETH
B ZANEEBEALE
B EERTREERSE
28 & M2013F 1283
A ERARBERARK
50530007C(2012F : AR
#8221,0007C) ° AEBEZ
ETE= T REETERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 7% R M R o

32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair values (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the
Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account current interest rates and the

current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of conversion option embedded in convertible notes
and warrants are determined using Monte Carlo Simulation and
Geometric Brownian Motion and binomial option pricing model
respectively and the significant unobservable input used in the
fair value measurement is volatility. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the volatility. As at 31 December 2013, the
volatility used in the valuations is 12%, and it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, an increase/decrease of 10% points in
the volatility would have decreased/increased the Group's profit by
RMB6,763,000/RMB1,972,000.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued)
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 32

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)  Fair values (continued)

()

(i)

& (&)

BHEREERERIANDAE

() DAEEE

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) (i)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (continued)

The movements during the period in the balance of these Level 3 fair

value measurements are as follows:

BRAREBEGIENEHEE
Fz@EE (&)
FIBRAABETEGE
(&)
TREIERERTARE
BEARHELHNT :

The Group
5 H
2013
RMB’000
AR®FR
Conversion option embedded in convertible AR G5 B RN BRI
notes and warrants:
At 2 December (Issuance date) RKI12A2B8(%17R) 2,516
Changes in fair value recognised in profit RABEG ABRA AR EBES
or loss during the period (544)
At 31 December R12A31H 1,972
Total gains for the period included FRFENEERRETA
in profit or loss for assets held at the end of B HBRNRE
the reporting period (544)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair (ii)

value

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade

and other receivables, current portion of receivables/obligations

under finance lease, current portion of long-term borrowings, short-

term borrowings, and trade and other payables, the carrying amounts

approximate fair value due to the relatively short term nature of these

financial instruments.
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| Notes to the Financial Statements continuea
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32  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e)  Fair values (continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair

value (continued)

In respect of borrowings, receivables/obligations under finance lease
and long-term receivables, the carrying amounts are not materially
different from their fair values at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
The fair values are estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial

instruments.

Unlisted investments for which their fair values cannot be reliably

measured are stated at cost less impairment losses.

33 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final dividend.
Further details are disclosed in Note 29(b).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)
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34

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued the
following amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted

in these financial statements.

34

EHEGEREBZ2013F12A31H
EEEEREMMBE - FEAM
RETRTRNFTE
RARBRERBE BB EINES
SEBMBUATE - MERMRE - Z
FEET - FEAIMBERREE213F 12
A3 BEFEHAER  RERAREHK
REREELARERA -

Effective for B T B
accounting periods ek ] )
beginning on or after BiHEEN
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, Investment entities I January 2014 BIPR B A R B 105F 20145
BB BREEAE 125 | A 1A
RER & EAIE 275
NEI(REER)
Amendments to |AS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation — | January 2014 B 25 ERE 32 BT 20144
Offsetting financial assets and financial labilities (2B TR Jl#F~ IAI1H
THEENEHREY
H##)
Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for | January 2014 BE et &R % 365 20144
non-financial assets WEI(BR L REE A 1H
AT % BB )
Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of denvatives and | January 2014 B & AR 39 B ET 0145
continuation of hedge accounting (1T I RHEEFEY | AI1H
BitHiLE)
IFRIC 21, Levies | January 2014 BRMBRERBERS 20145
2B R(HE) | A 1A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
1o have a significant impact on the Group's or the Company's results of operations

and financial position.
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Financial Summary

LS HE

=1 g |

:-:".‘_1

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF HREHGEENEREERE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 3| December

BZ A3 BLEE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETE AREBTT AR%®ETT  AR¥TR
Tumover WA 2,065,685 3,004,933 4,240,275 4955933 6,865,508
Gross profit E7 775,180 1,164,143 1,450,891 1,573,121 2,130,846
Profit from operations e 620,388 786244 1,091,320 1,101,717 1,526,884
Profit before taxation BRELAI A 565,52 668,379 981,447 907,129 1,203,613
Profit and total comprehensive REFE R
income for the year AW EE 531,575 533216 835,647 771,285 909,612
Attributable to: el :
Equity Shareholders of the Company AR RIERIFH A 530037 577,281 8303819 770,117 907,896
Non-controlling interests EE e 1,538 (44,065) 4828 1,168 1,716
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Financial Summary continued

BRE @

SUMMARY DATA OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December

HASHUBRRRBERE

_; |

RI2A318

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETT  AR¥ETR

Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 3,073,188 5,415,098 7,637,415 12,059,846 14,281,074
Total current assets MENEERRE 2601013 2,219,575 2,187,365 2,733,255 2,270,694
Total assets EEHTE 5,674,201 7,634,673 9,824,780 14,793,101 16,551,768
Total current liabilities MENE EEE (1,274,772) (2,086,894) (2,562,974) (5819,348) (3,743,337)
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTEAE 4399,429 5,547,779 7,261,806 8973753 12,808,431
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELERE (574,594) (1,181,228) (2,258,455) (3426,602) (6,578,663)
Net assets BEFE 3,824,835 436655 5,003,351 5,547,151 6,229,768
Total equity et e 3,824,835 436655 5,003,351 5,547,151 6,229,768
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Definitions

“Baotou Yingde" Baotou Yingde Gases Co., Ltd. ( BBERERBER DA, a [BBERE] £ BARERBERIA B
wholly owned subsidiary of our Company AARHEREFAT

“Board"” the board of directors of our Company - E ARAIESE

“Business Day” a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong [&%A] ¥ EBAREHAN - EHAER
Kong NRBRELASNY B ER

“CAGR" Compond annual growth rate [CAGR] B FEERRE

“China" or “PRC" the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this [ E B PEARKENE - ERAF
annual report and for geographical reference only and except BREMELZEME  BRX
where the context requires, references in this annual report ESHEN  RERER
to “China" and the “PRC" do not include Taiwan, the Macau [FE MR ABES
Special Administrative Region and Hong Kong & ORPIRRITTER R EE

“Director(s)" directors of the Company [E%] B RRAES

“Hengyang Valin" Hengyang Hualing Lianzhaguan Company Limited* (&[5 53 [EEEZ] £ GHEEZELEARALT
B EHR /AT, a subsidiary of Hunan Valin Steel Company RAAEZHERNERA
Limited* (4RI Z MBI D AR A F]), a company whose AERMRAIBSR S
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange FrLEm) 2B A

“Hengyang Yingde" Hengyang Yingde Gases Company Limited* ({f5 & /=552 (ERaEl £ THREREIRBERAR.
BBR 2 7)) incorporated in the PRC on 23 December 2008 —ARBERE(RBRE L
pursuant to a joint venture agreement between Yingde BVI, B) HEAREREGEZ
Hunan Yingde and Hengyang Valin, which is a joint venture F] M) & 1 % 7 2008 5
company owned as to 70% by us and 30% by Hengyang Valin 12 423 B % B & ik

HRAE BRAEE70%%

BREGEZERE 0% ES
E’]/\.L./'\
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Definitions (continued)

BEam

“HK$", “HKD" or
"HK dollars”

"Hong Kong" or “HK"

"Hong Kong
Companies

Ordinance”

"Hong Kong Stock

Exchange”

“Hunan Yingde"

“IFRS"

“independent

third party”

“Listing Rules”

“LTIR"

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong

Kong) (as amended from time to time)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Hunan Yingde Gases Company Limited* (#if8 2{EREFR A
7)), a company established in the PRC on 29 October 2001 and

a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

International Financial Reporting Standards

a person or entity which is not a connected person of our
Company

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (as amended from time to
time)

Lost time injury rate

[BARA 1§
{1 |

[BABRA] 5

Hmaml &

[BIFREIH5 45

EEA]

[BIE=7] 1K

[EMRA $5

[LTIR] %

B BREEEE

FEEERITRE

BEEDE 6225 1 AR

(BABHERT)

BREMARIMBERAF

MEREREBERAR  —
BR2001 FE10A 298 &
Eil v /NG - ¥ /NG )
2ENBAF

B A 3RS 2R

PHRARREEALTNAL

\

ggl'
i
i

BRABARZMBRARE
7 LR B (EARHERT)

BATHEESHE
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BERRE

m

“Nm*/hr”

“Prospectus”

“Renminbi” or “RMB"

"Rizhao Yingde"

“SAl Report”

"SFO”

“Share(s)"

“Share Option

Scheme”

“Shenhua”

Definitions (continued)

E&E

normal cubic meter/hour

the prospectus of our Company dated 24 September 2009

the lawful currency of the PRC

Rizhao Yingde Gases Company Limited* (AR ZZRIBHR A
7)), a company established in the PRC on 30 October 2006 and

a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

the industry report dated |7 March 2014 entitled China
Industrial Gas Market Analysis published by Strategic Analysis Inc.

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws

of Hong Kong) (as amended from time to time)

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of US$0.000001 each in the

share capital of our Company

the share option scheme conditionally approved by our shareholders
on |2 September 2009 and approved and adopted by the Board
on |2 September 2009

Shenhua Group Corporation Limited ( fFZEEEBRAF)), a
state-owned enterprise established in PRC in October 1995.

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
EEBERLDE
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Definitions (continued)

EEm

“United States”
or "US"

"US$”, "USD” or
“US dollars”

“Yingde BVI”

the United States of America, its territories, its possessions

and all areas subject to its jurisdiction

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

Yingde Gases Investment Limited* (R{ZERBHREFR A
A]), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 18
April 2006 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and

investment holding company in our Group
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Definitions (continued)

E&E

In this annual report:

“Company”, “our Company”, “our”, “we” and "us" refer to Yingde Gases Group
Company Limited Z{EREEEEHGRQF), an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 25 September 2007 and, except
where the context otherwise requires, include all of its subsidiaries or where
the context refers to any time prior to its incorporation, the business which its
predecessors or the predecessors of its present subsidiaries were engaged in and

which were subsequently assumed by it;

“Group” means our Company and its subsidiaries from time to time; and

the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “connected transaction”, “controlling

shareholder”, “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have the meanings

given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context otherwise requires.

denotes English translation of the name of a Chinese company or entity, or vice versa, and is

provided for identification purposes only

YINGDE GASES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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